
    

                    

 

 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin                                               Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  

Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D.     Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred from 

further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of 

the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal attacks and 

comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, August 14, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

 (In-person and virtually. See pages 3-4 for additional information) 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Invocation: Councilman Victor Vazquez 

 Pledge of Allegiance: Audience will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 

 

4. Awards & Presentations:   

 

A) Presentation by Mr. Rob Gordon awarding the City of Miami Springs the STEM 

City of the Year Award for the City's consistent support of STEM activities at the Recreation 

Center over the last 10 years 

 

B) Lt. Vince Gonzalez of Miami-Dade Fire Rescue presenting the HELP Initiative, an 

outreach program that teaches civilians of all ages how to be a "first responder" through classes 

on how to perform CPR, apply tourniquets to stop the bleed, signs to look for in a person having a 

stroke, and how to help someone who is choking  

 

C) Pastor Dan Gossett of City Rev Church introducing his new church campus at 

the Miami Springs Baptist Church 

 

D) Yard of the Month Award for July 2023 – 1160 Heron Avenue – The Sandoval 

Family 

 

5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general City business, may do so in 

person (subject to capacity restrictions) or virtually by following the instructions on pages 3-4. This 

portion of the meeting also includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open 

Forum is to encourage residents and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments 

on any item.  The City Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any 

question, issue, and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council meetings 

and shall conduct the meetings accordingly. 

REVISED 



 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 

A) May 15, 2023 – Workshop 

B) June 29, 2023 – Regular Meeting 

C) July 20, 2023 – Special Council Meeting 

 

7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  None. 

 

8. Public Hearings:  None. 

 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Ratifying A Local Services Program Contract With The Alliance For Aging, Inc. 

Relating To The City’s Congregate And Home Delivered Meals Program For The City’s Elderly 

Community; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Approving An Increase Of $116,765.86 For The Purchase Of Two Sanitation 

Trucks From Nextran Corporation D/B/A Nextran Truck Center; Providing For Implementation; 

And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Rescinding And Repealing Resolution No. 2022-4034 That Approved The 

Purchase Of Three 2022 Ford Police Interceptor AWD Utility Vehicles From Duval Ford, LLC; 

Approving The Purchase Of Three Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD V8 Vehicles From Garber 

Chrysler-Dodge Truck, Inc. In An Amount Not To Exceed $129,066.00 Utilizing The Terms And 

Conditions Of The Florida Sheriffs Association Contract No. Fsa22-Vel 30.0 Pursuant To Section 

31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; Declaring Certain Vehicles As Surplus Property; Authorizing The 

Sale Or Disposition Of Surplus Property; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An 

Effective Date 

 

10. Old Business:  None. 

 

11. New Business:   

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Appointing Juan Carlos “J.C.” Jimenez As City Manager; Authorizing The Mayor 

To Execute An Employment Agreement On Behalf Of The City Related To The City Manager; 

Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 

Florida, Providing For The Collection Of Garbage, Trash And Recycling Service Fees Using The 

Uniform Method Of Collection Of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues; Providing For Maximum Fees For 

Garbage, Trash And Recycling Services; Directing The Preparation Of A Preliminary Assessment 

Roll; Establishing A Public Hearing To Consider The Imposition Of Garbage, Trash And Recycling 

Service Fees For Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2023 And The Maximum Fees; Directing The 



Provision Of Notice Thereof; Providing For Severability; And An Effective Date 

 

C)      Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Approving A First Amendment To A Continuing Professional Services 

Agreement With Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. For General Planning And Zoning Services 

To Increase Compensation By $11,000 For Fiscal Year 2022-23; Providing For Authorization; 

Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date (Requires a 4/5 vote) 

 

D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Approving An Amended And Restated Interlocal Agreement With Miami-Dade 

County Relating To The Reestablishment And Distribution Of The Six-Cent Local Option Gas Tax; 

Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

12. Other Business:   

 

A) Request by Councilman Fajet to discuss permitted uses in the Gateway Overlay 

District 

 

B) Request by staff to discuss Calvin Giordano and Associates proposed Special Projects 

estimate 

 

C) Request by Vice Mayor Santin to discuss the request made by the Centennial 

Committee at the Budget Workshop on August 7, 2023 i.e. Centennial Logo (develop in-

house/outsource), Fundraising/Sponsorships, etc. 

 

D) Request by Vice Mayor Santin to have Bermello Ajamil, City Engineers/Architects, to 

assess the possibility of adding pickleball courts to current tennis court/racquetball center 

 

13. Reports & Recommendations: 

 

A) City Attorney 

 

B) City Manager 

 

C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 



 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a Council meeting on: 

Monday, August 14, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. at  

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

(Physical Meeting Location) 

 
The meeting agenda is available online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate from the physical meeting location.  

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the physical meeting location, or, 
alternatively, may watch or call in to the meeting by following these instructions: 

 

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON AT THE PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 

The meeting will be held in person at the physical meeting location stated above.  
Admission to the physical meeting location is on a first-come, first-serve basis and space is limited.  

Doors will open 30 minutes prior to the meeting start time.  
The City highly encourages those in attendance to wear facial coverings and abide by social distancing as 

recommended by the CDC.   

WATCH AND/OR PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING 

• ZOOM: Meeting ID 863-9512-4146 

• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 

• From your computer/mobile device: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 or 305-805-5152  

(Alternatively, you may also dial the phone numbers below to join the meeting: 

        1 (646) 558 8656, 1 (301) 715 8592, 1 (312) 626 6799, 1 (669) 900 9128, 1 (253) 215 8782,  

1 (346) 248 7799) then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of 

the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: 
Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying 
Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. 
Public comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the 
agenda, if any.  

IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Members of the public may attend the meeting at the physical meeting location 
stated above and deliver their public comments in person during the public comment portion of the agenda.  

VIRTUAL COMMENTS: Public comments will also be accepted during the meeting using the virtual 

meeting platform as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, call in to the meeting using the instructions above. 
Please press *9 from your telephone and you will be called on to speak during public comments and 
identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the meeting, when your name or the last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information 
before delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, 
and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

 
Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City 
Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to 
continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members 
present. In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when 
addressing the Council during public comments. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved 
and is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 

 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 

COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, HE 

OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE 

MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH 

RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the 
proceeding by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County 
Code, any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office 
before addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all 
persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, 
defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, 
decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or 
entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been 
employed to lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and 
online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 

Have questions or need additional information? 

Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 

Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, May 16, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Jorge Santin                             
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo 
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D.                          
Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph. D. 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero 
City Attorney Haydee Sera (via Zoom) 
City Attorney Roger Pou 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilwoman Jacky Bravo 

Pledge of Allegiance/Salute to the Flag: Led by the audience. 
 
3. Workshop on City Council Goals and Update on Current and Future Projects 
 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed everyone and stated that the City Manager provided a list of 
projects and initiatives that the City is working on and would need to determine the priority 
of potential projects.  
 
City Manager William Alonso started with the first initiative from the list that are current and 
proposed projects that are funded by ARPA; 
 
1) Prince Field Shades 
 
City Manager Alonso stated that this item is coming forward for Council approval at the next 
Council meeting.   
 
2) Batting Cages 
 
City Manager Alonso explained that engineering calculations have been completed and 
determining available funds in the ARPA to cover this request.   



 
 2 

 
3)  Curtiss Parkway Pavers 
 
City Manager Alonso stated that this project addresses the extension of the existing area of 
the paved area.    He explained the funding source would be potential State appropriation 
and the American Rescue Plan. 
 
4)  Curtiss Mansion Irrigation System 
 
City Manager Alonso stated that $40,000 has been allocated and an RFP has been issued; 
project is underway.  He explained the funding source would be potential State 
appropriation and the American Rescue Plan. 
 
5) Westward Drive Tree Lighting 
 
City Manager William Alonso stated the electrical extension to the library in order to provide 
electricity in the median.  
 
The City Manager then listed proposed ARPA Funded Projects depending on funding 
leftover: 
 

1) Aquatic Center Shade Areas for Pool Deck - $75,000 
2) Stafford Walking Path with Lighting - $ 250,000 
3) Stafford Exercise Stations - $100,000 
4) Peavey Dove Fencing and T-Ball Fields - $200,000 
5) Dog Park Improvements - $90,000 
6) Passive Park or other recreational improvements at Rio Vista – Cost Unknown 

 
Currently, he stated that the following current projects are State, ARPA and City Funding 
and their status in the timeline:  
 
South Royal Poinciana Boulevard Median – is currently underway and funded through 
State and ARPA funding, completion date is August 2023 - $2.2 million 
 
Oakwood/East Drive Stormwater Project – ITB is issued and will be awarded in June 
estimated at $7.2 million 
 
South Drive Stormwater – at 60% design stage and fully State funded - $2.2 million 
 
Hook Square Pump Station – depending delivery of the pump; expected to be advertised 
for bid in June or July - $750,000 state funding 
 
Golf Course Renovation is currently underway and completion is set for November 2023 - 
$3.8 million City funding through bank note 
 



 
 3 

 
Vulnerability Assessment Study is to strategize and come up with adaptation alternatives 
(long term plan - 2040 and 2070) to reduce flood risks to City owned critical assets and 
structures that may be impacted by sea-level rise, storm surges, rainfall events and other 
compound scenarios; allowing for grant applications to improve City infrastructure - fully 
state funded $240,000 
 
ADA Access to Miami Springs Triangle Median pending benches and walking path funded 
through County Disability fines $20,000 
 
New Senior Center Bus is in progress of acquiring a new bus through State funding FDOT 
Grant $90,000 
 
Curtiss War Memorial Renovations is currently waiting to be funded; estimate of State 
funding is $150,000; not including private donations. 
 
There was extensive discussion by the City Council and Administration on Planning and 
Zoning services; discussion on the type of services needed and what areas are needed to 
be considered for update.  There was further discussion on the process of having a 
workshop on strategic planning and the recommendations made by the Business and 
Economic Development Task Force.  The City Council had consensus to meet at a 
workshop in June on a subject to be determined at the Council Meeting on May 22nd.    
 
City Manager William Alonso provided a list of future City projects: 
 
1)  New City Hall/Police facility   
2)  Parking Garage   
3)  Tennis courts/pickleball courts/racquetball courts at the golf course   
4)  Outdoor basketball courts   
5)  Stormwater Master Plan   
6)  Obtain additional grant funding to complete citywide sidewalk connectivity project  
7)  Wi-Fi in open spaces   
8)  Recreation Master Plan   
9) Flood and Erosion Control including Roadway and drainage improvements for 
Esplanade and Melrose Canals.   
10) Completion of MD County Wellfield Project (MD Project - impacting several pump 
houses within MS)   
11) Hire a third party to perform a 5-10-year Strategic Plan   
   
He then stated what the current administration is working on which is ongoing or upcoming:
     
1) Parking Study of downtown area-Ongoing   
2) Directed Parks and Parkways Board to provide recommendations on changes to our 
Tree Code-ongoing   
3) Negotiations with FOP on new police contract, current contract expires 9/30/23-



 
 4 

upcoming June/July 2023   
4) Monitoring FDOT projects for the NW 36th St Corridor    
5) Monitoring FDOT projects - The Iron Triangle Project   
6) The Oliva Project 4601-4649 NW 36th Street-Site Plan approved Building Plans due in 
June/July 2023  
 
The City Manager gave an update on the FDOT projects such as the Iron Triangle and NW 
36th Street Corridor and the status of the projects.  
 
Mayor Mitchell offered information with her list of items and stated that we have outgrown 
the current City Hall. She stated that hopefully in the upcoming meeting City Council can 
direct staff to work with the City architect/engineering group to come up with some ideas.  
She indicated that the City can explore utilizing the current Police parking area as a 
potential building site for parking lot and police facility.  The Mayor indicated that overnight 
parking restriction throughout the City in general, whether to allow it or not in 
residential/commercial areas.  She stated that City Advisory Board should meet on their 
designated day, attendance should be crucial for these boards and if members are not 
attending the Clerk will advise the Council member respectively.  The Mayor stated that the 
City should embark on a collaboration with Miami International Airport, they create a lot of 
business and a collaboration may enhance Miami Springs business patronage as well.  
Mayor Mitchell stated that she met with County Commissioner Cabrera to discuss the “Bed 
Tax” issue, which he was not aware of.  She requested of him to look into it County-wide on 
a fair equitable distribution of the funds. 
 
Councilwoman Bravo addressed her items on the agenda.  She stated that a workshop and 
a charter provision changing the zoning on 36th Street will help with development.  She then 
spoke on Ordinance Chapter 118 to alleviate the cost of service calls to the hotels on NW 
36th Street; the City Attorney provided a statement that the ordinance is not enforceable 
due to case law.  He stated that they are exploring other avenues and will have more 
information on this at a later date. Councilwoman Bravo stated that there are potential 
grants to apply for funding for Glenn Curtiss monuments and should be something to look 
into, especially for the one-hundred-year celebration. She stated that there is funding for 
potentially having a new band stand for the Circle. Councilwoman Bravo indicated that she 
would like to explore ideas on improving the aesthetics, interior and amenities at the Golf 
Country Club; she indicated that there are untapped opportunities there that should be 
looked into.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
4. Public Comments   
 
There were no speakers at this time. 
 
 
 



 
 5 

5. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 

 
 



 

 1 

      

 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

Thursday, June 29, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

In-Person/Virtual Council Meeting  
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell  
Vice Mayor Jorge Santin 
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph.D.  
Councilman Victor Vazquez. Ph.D. 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Roger Pou 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Public Works Director Lazaro Garaboa 
Assistant Public Works Director Lizette Fuentes 
Human Resources Director Bill Collins 
Finance Director Chris Chiocca  
 
2. Invocation:  Offered by Mayor Mitchell 
 Pledge of Allegiance: The Girl Scouts Troop 2564 led in the pledge. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business:  
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Visit from the Honorable Senator Bryan Avila and Honorable Representative 
Alex Rizo 

 
Senator Avila and Representative Rizo provided an update on recent legislative 
session accomplishments that were beneficial to the residents of the City such as one 
of the largest tax relief packages, increase in educational funding, funding for 
affordable housing, environmental funding including state-wide and local funding and 
economic packages to move Florida forward; Senator Avila stated that locally the City 
received around $9.5 million in State funding over a nine-year span.  The City Council 
thanked the Senator and Representative for their update.  
 

B) Recognizing the Miami Springs Little League 8U Miami Springs Coach Pitch 
All-Star team that won the 2023 Little League Florida District 8 Coach Pitch Championship  



 

 2 

 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed all the players, coaches and parents to the meeting.  League 
President Fred Gonzalez stated a few words and thanked the City Council and the 
community for their continued support.  Mayor Mitchell and City Council presented 
certificates to all the players and coaches for their successful season. 

 
C) Brief introduction by the new Miami Springs Middle School Principal Chris 

Saavedra  
 

Councilman Vazquez took a moment to introduce Principal Saavedra.  Principal 
Saavedra thanked the Councilman for the kind words.  He stated that he is thrilled to 
be a part of the community and serving the children of the City. He looks forward to 
working with Council, and the residents and students of the City. 

 
D) Yard of the Month Award for June 2023 – 189 Palmetto Drive – Dsouza Family 

 
The Dsouza Family was not available to receive their award.  The City Clerk stated that 
the award will be delivered to the family. 
 

5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
Kahnee Rodriguez, 649 Eastward Drive; Yohanna Hernandez, 1161 Oriole Avenue; 
Maribel Martin, 44 Curtiss Parkway; Dr. Francois Zayas, 373 Westward Drive; Laura 
Cabrera, 587 Minola Drive. 
 
6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) June 12, 2023 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Vazquez moved to approve the minutes of June 12, 2023 Regular Meeting.  
Councilman Fajet seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote 
was as follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, 
Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  None at this time. 
 
8. Public Hearings:  None at this time. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Approving The Purchase Of Radar Speed Signs From Traffic Logix 
Corporation In An Amount Not To Exceed $64,950.00 Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of 
Sourcewell Contract No. 070821-Lgx Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; 
Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Approving An Agreement With Marsden South, L.L.C. For Janitorial 
Services For The City’s Municipal Facilities Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of The 



 

 3 

Cooperative Council Of Governments, Inc. Group Purchasing Agreement Awarded Pursuant 
To Request For Proposals No. 2014.04.01 Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City 
Code; Providing For Authorization; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An 
Effective Date 
 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Approving An Agreement With Thermal Concepts, LLC For HVAC 
Repair Services Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of The City Of Palm Beach Gardens 
Contract No. Rfq2022-019cs(F) Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; 
Authorizing The City Manager To Issue A Purchase Order For Repair And Maintenance Of 
City Air Conditioning Units In An Amount Not To Exceed $70,000.00; Providing For 
Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Accepting A Local Government Cybersecurity Grant; Approving A 
Grant Agreement With The Florida Department Of Management Services Relating To The 
Grant; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 

E) Recommendation - Recommendation by City Clerk’s Office that Council waive 
the competitive bid process and approve an expenditure to Full Moon in the amount of 
$4,000.00, for A/V services for Council meetings, special meetings, workshops etc., as funds 
were approved in the FY 22/23 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City 
Code. Requires 4/5 vote by Council. 

 
Councilman Fajet made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman 
Vazquez seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
10. Old Business:  None. 
 
11. New Business:   

 
A) Brief public interviews with City Manager Candidates 

 
Each candidate spoke on their desire and interest in serving the City in the capacity of 
City Manager.  The following was the order of candidates:  Tammy Romero; Juan 
Jimenez; Dale Martin; and Christopher Russo addressed the City Council and the 
public.  There were no further questions or action on this item. 

 
12. Other Business:   
 

A) Request by Councilman Vazquez to discuss consideration of having a facilitator 
assisting in specific future Council workshops  
 
Councilman Vazquez stated that he feels that during certain workshops that it would 
be more expedient and more productive to have a facilitator guide the Council to keep 
moving forward and assist with the flow of the workshop.  After some discussion, the 



 

 4 

City Council concluded that they will decide prior to a workshop whether to hire a 
facilitator.  It was the general consensus of the City Council to discuss hiring a 
facilitator on a case by case. 
 

B) Request by Mayor Mitchell to discuss exploring options on new Police 
Headquarters and Parking 

 
Mayor Mitchell stated that we have outgrown City Hall and space is very limited.  She 
wanted to gather consensus from the City Council to give direction to staff to work 
with the City Engineers and Architect to explore construction of a new Police Station 
and Administrative Offices at the current Police parking lot as the most viable 
location.   

 
C) Request by Vice Mayor Santin to discuss creating a process for development 

agreements on new commercial construction projects and reviewing the policies for road 
closures 

 
Vice Mayor Santin stated that the City Council consider providing direction to the City 
Attorney to revise language in Chapter 114 of the Code, in order to update roadway 
closure language.  City Attorney Pou stated that he would be able to present the 
Council with options and updated language for their consideration.  The City Council 
gave general consensus to direct the City Attorney to explore development 
agreements used by other municipalities and come back with options available. 

 
D) Request by Suzanne Wolar regarding Miami Springs Woman’s Club event to 

be held in October 
 

This item was heard earlier in the evening.  Ms. Milly Perez-Crespo, of the Woman’s 
Club, provided an oral presentation along with a hand out requesting closure of the 
circle in October for a witch themed bike ride.  After some discussion, the City Council 
requested Ms. Perez-Crespo to coordinate with City Administration and Police 
Department to coordinate the proper logistics and safety measures for the event. 
 
13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Roger Pou had no report at this time. 
  

B) City Manager 
 

Interim City Manager Tammy Romero provided a list of City events.  More information 
is available on the City’s Official Website.    
 

C) City Council 
 
Vice Mayor Santin thanked all the City Manager candidates for attending the meeting 
and is confident that the City Council will make the best decision for the City.  



 

 5 

 
Councilwoman Bravo stated that she met with Commissioner Cabrera on a variety of 
items that include capital improvements on County properties specially NW 36th 
Street; and graffiti at the bus stops.  She discussed the business uses allowed in the 
Gateway Overlay and is open for further discussion at a future meeting. 
 
Councilman Fajet asked if the City has put any information on the City Manager 
candidates is on the City website. He then inquired if the City Council will be 
considering the Girl Scout request for a contribution to their summer trip, request was 
for $250.00.  There was unanimous consensus by the City Council to donate $250.00 
to Girl Scout Troop 2564. 
 
Councilman Vazquez thanked the Public Works Department for housing the bricks for 
the War Memorial dedication program.  He stated that he is excited that the State 
appropriated funds for the War Memorial remodel and looks forward to setting a 
timeline and seeing the project take off.   
 
Mayor Mitchell congratulated Councilman Vazquez and former Councilman Bob Best 
on their recent State appropriation for the War Memorial improvements.  She thanked 
them for their endless hard work and effort in the endeavor.  She stated that the only 
appropriation the City did not receive this year is canal embankment reinforcement.  
The Mayor thanked everyone on the Council for their hard work with the City Manager 
selection process.  She extended warm wishes to Yvonne Shonnberger, of the Historic 
Preservation Board and the Historical Society, for a quick recovery.  Also, the Mayor 
wished best wishes to Merle Klien of the Woman’s Club for a speedy recovery as well. 
Mayor Mitchell wished everyone a happy and safe fourth of July. 
 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

Special Council Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 20, 2023 5:01 p.m. 

Rebeca Sosa Theater, 1401 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 

Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 5:02 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Jorge Santin 
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph.D.  
Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. (via Zoom) 

 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero 
Finance Director Chirs Chiocca  
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria  
City Attorney Roger Pou  
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Vice Mayor Jorge Santin 

 Pledge of Allegiance/Salute to the Flag: The audience participated 

 

4. Public Comment:  The following members of the public addressed the City 

Council:  No speakers at this time. 

 

5. New Business: 

 

A) Resolution - A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Declaring, As Required By Section 200.065, Florida Statutes, The 
City’s Proposed Millage Rate, Rolled-Back Rate Computed Pursuant To Section 
200.065(1), Florida Statutes, And The Date, Time And Place At Which The First And 
Second Public Budget Hearings Will Be Held To Consider The Proposed Millage Rate And 
The Tentative Budget For Fiscal Year 2023-2024; Directing The City Clerk And Interim City 
Manager To File This Resolution With The Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser; 
Authorizing The Interim City Manager To Change Budget Hearing Dates, If Needed; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 

City Attorney Roger Pou read the Resolution by title.  Finance Director Chris Chiocca 

read the staff memo for the record.  He provided an overview of the upcoming 

budget process and gave his recommendation on the millage cap. 

 



 
 2 

After brief discussion, Councilman Fajet moved to approve the millage cap at 6.9900. 

Councilwoman Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The 

vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, 

Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 

B) Resolution - A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Authorizing The Mayor, With The Assistance Of The City Attorney, 
To Negotiate An Employment Agreement On Behalf Of The City With Juan Carlos Jimenez 
As The Top-Ranked Candidate For City Manager; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria passed out ranking sheets for the selection of 

the City Manager.  After the voting sheets were collected by the City Clerk, the 

following announcement was made after completion of the tally: 

 

First Choice: JC Jimenez, 2 votes; Chris Russo, 2 votes; Tammy Romero, 1 vote. 

Second Choice: JC Jimenez, 3 votes; Chris Russo, 2 votes. 

 

After brief discussion, Councilwoman Bravo made a motion to appoint Chris Russo 

as City Manager. Vice Mayor Santin seconded the motion, which failed 2-3 on roll 

call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Santin and Councilwoman Bravo, 

voting Yes; Councilman Fajet, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting No. 

 

After further discussion. Councilman Fajet made a motion to appoint JC Jimenez as 

City Manager.  Councilman Vazquez seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll 

call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, 

Councilman Fajet, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 

City Attorney Roger Pou read the Resolution with Mr. JC Jimenez’s name inserted in 

the title.  Councilman Vazquez made a motion to approve the Resolution as stated.  

Councilman Fajet seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote 

was as follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, 

Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
  

4. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 3 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 

MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



           

Meeting Date: August 14, 2023  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

From:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 

    

Subject: Ratification of OAA Contract signed by Interim City Manager   
             

Recommendation: Recommendation by Interim City Manager that Council ratify the Alliance for 

Aging OAA Contract. This contract was signed prior to Councils approval, due to the urgency of 

executing and securing the necessary funding in order to continue to provide meals and services to our 

seniors, as well as those seniors from Virginia Gardens. 
 

Discussion: Per my email back in July (attached), I had informed all of Council of the urgency to sign the 
Alliance for Aging OAA Contract.  
 
As you all know, I received the contract on July 7th and just one day later I was informed by email that funds 
would be held for an extended period, before being released to us, until such time a contract was signed by 
all parties.  
 
As a result, I felt the need to inform each of you that due to the pressing circumstances and given the 
urgency and importance of this matter, it was in the best interest for our seniors, who depend heavily on 
these nutritious meals, that it was necessary for me to proceed with the signing of this contract to prevent 
any further funding delays.  
 
The contract was signed on July 11th and as promised, I am bringing before you, a copy of the signed 
contract for official approval by Council.  



1

Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria

From: Tammy Romero <romerot@miamisprings-fl.gov>
Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 12:27 PM
To: Council
Cc: Roger Pou; Chris Chiocca
Subject: 2023-2024 LSP Contract City of Miami Springs KL 2305.
Attachments: image004.jpg; image006.png

Good morning Mayor and Council,  
 
I hope you are all doing well this Friday morning.  
 
Per my email below to the Alliance for Aging, I am writing to inform you that due to the pressing circumstances and 
given the urgency and importance of the matter, I believe it is necessary to proceed with the signing of this contract to 
prevent any further funding delays. Once the contract is signed, I will ensure that it is brought before you for official 
approval at the next Council meeting. 
 
I am available to discuss this matter further and address any concerns you may have. 
 

Thank you, 
 

gtÅÅç eÉÅxÜÉ 
  

Tammy Romero 
Interim City Manager 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
 
 

From: Tammy Romero  
Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 12:07 PM 
To: Mariangeli Cataluna <catalunam@allianceforaging.org>; Tammy Key <keyt@miamisprings‐fl.gov> 
Cc: mcneeses@allianceforaging.org; rothmanm@allianceforaging.org; mayor@virginiagardens‐fl.gov 
Subject: RE: Stan Mcneese has copied you on 2023‐2024 LSP Contract City of Miami Springs KL 2305. 
 
Good morning,  
 
I hope this email finds you well this Friday morning.  
 
I am writing to you on behalf of the City of Miami Springs Community Center and Virginia Garden seniors, in order to 
address an urgent matter regarding the recently received contract from the Alliance for Aging. 
 
Firstly, we express our gratitude for the opportunity to work together with providing essential meals to seniors in our 
communities (Miami Springs and Virginia Gardens). However, I would like to bring to your attention that we received the 
contract just yesterday and today’s email (below) which informs us that funds will be held for an extended period, 
before being released to us, until such time a contract is signed by all parties.  
 
As you know, many of our seniors depend heavily on these nutritious meals we provide through the funding we receive. 
These meals are often a lifeline for those who are unable to prepare or access adequate food themselves. Any delay in 



2

receiving the funds may impede our ability to continue our services without interruption, potentially leaving our seniors 
vulnerable and without essential nourishment. 
 
While I understand the necessity for signing this contract in a timely manner, I feel obligated to point out that we too 
have protocols in place for approving contractual agreements. Our Council, legal advisor, and senior management, need 
to review and provide their consent before I can sign it. I kindly request your understanding and cooperation in allowing 
us a reasonable period to complete our internal approval process. I am committed to expediting the review and I will 
explore an alternative solution in the meantime, as to not jeopardize the continuity of our services for our seniors. I will 
provide a signed agreement, once I have received the necessary approvals from Council. In the meantime, I kindly 
request your reconsideration of the decision to hold the funds during this extended period, with the well‐being of the 
seniors, being the priority.  
 
Thank you for your understanding, and I eagerly await your favorable response. Please do not hesitate to contact me 
directly if you require any further information or clarification. 
 
 

Thank you, 
 

gtÅÅç eÉÅxÜÉ 
  

Tammy Romero 
Interim City Manager 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 
(O) 305.805.5035 
(C) 786.229.9758 
(E) romerot@miamisprings-fl.gov 
 
 

Like us on Facebook www.facebook.com/MiamiSpringsFL/  
 

      Follow us on Twitter https://twitter.com/MiamiSpringsFL  
 

      Visit us at www.miamisprings-fl.gov  
 

Subscribe to our e-Newsletter 
 
 

Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary. 
 
 
 



3

 

From: Mariangeli Cataluna <catalunam@allianceforaging.org>  
Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 9:05 AM 
To: Tammy Key <keyt@miamisprings‐fl.gov>; Tammy Romero <romerot@miamisprings‐fl.gov> 
Subject: FW: Stan Mcneese has copied you on 2023‐2024 LSP Contract City of Miami Springs KL 2305. 
Importance: High 
 

Good morning Tammy K and Tammy R, 
 
Per Stan, the executed contract for LSP have not been returned. Please note the first week in July are ineligible 
to be billed because there is no executed contract. 
 
Thank you. 
 
�
��������	
����
�
	
�	�������	
����	�	���	�
��	������
	���	�	��
�
����	������
�������������
����� �!����"����#�����$!%�
�	& ���'��((!�$�
(�)*���*�)�����+���!!$!��
�	�	���	& , 	���	�����
	������
����
�

 
�

 

From: Stan Mcneese <adobesign@adobesign.com>  
Sent: Thursday, July 6, 2023 7:35 AM 
To: Mariangeli Cataluna <catalunam@allianceforaging.org> 
Subject: Stan Mcneese has copied you on 2023‐2024 LSP Contract City of Miami Springs KL 2305. 
 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
Company Logo

 
To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
Adobe Acrobat Sign

 
  



4

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

To help 
privacy, 
prevente
downloa
from the

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

Attached is Your Copy (Cc) 
of 2023-2024 LSP Contract 
City of Miami Springs KL 
2305  

Stan Mcneese has copied you on 2023‐2024 LSP 
Contract City of Miami Springs KL 2305. After all 
participants complete the document you 
will receive a final PDF copy by email.  

To: Tammy Romero and 
rothmanm@allianceforaging.org  
From: Stan Mcneese 
(mcneeses@allianceforaging.org) 

Please review and complete 2023‐2024 
LSP Contract City of Miami Springs KL 
2305.  

Click here to view this document online in your 
Adobe Acrobat Sign account.  

Why use Adobe Acrobat Sign: 

 Exchange, Sign, and File Any Document. In 
Seconds! 

 Set-up Reminders. Instantly Share Copies with 
Others. 

 See All of Your Documents, Anytime, 
Anywhere. 

 

To ensure that you continue receiving our emails, please add adobesign@adobesign.com to your address book or safe list.  

Terms of Use | Report Abuse  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, RATIFYING A LOCAL 
SERVICES PROGRAM CONTRACT WITH THE ALLIANCE FOR 
AGING, INC. RELATING TO THE CITY’S CONGREGATE AND 
HOME DELIVERED MEALS PROGRAM FOR THE CITY’S 
ELDERLY COMMUNITY; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Alliance for Aging, Inc. (the “Alliance”) contracts with the Florida 

Department of Elder Affairs to fund local services program providers in Miami-Dade 

County and Monroe County that provide eligible services, including the provision of 

congregate and home delivered meals for elderly communities; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) currently provides the Services 

for the City’s elderly community; and 

WHEREAS, the City has historically contracted with the Alliance to fund the 

Services; and 

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2023, the City Manager entered into the Local Services 

Program Contract (the “Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit “A” with the Alliance to 

ensure that the City received reimbursement for costs incurred to provide the Services; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to ratify the Agreement with the Alliance; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Ratification of Agreement. That the City Council hereby ratifies the 

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” with the Alliance to receive reimbursement for 

costs incurred to provide the Services. 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 3. Implementation. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to take 

such further action as may be necessary to implement the purpose and provisions of this 

Resolution and the Agreement.  

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

















































































































           

Meeting Date: 8/14/2023  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 

    

From:   Lazaro Garaboa, Public Works Director 

    

Subject: (2) Side Loader Single Axel Garbage Trucks – Sanitation  
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase of 

$116,765.86 to purchase order # 230717 to Next Tran Truck Center D/B/A Nextran Truck Center for the 

purchase of two (2) 2023 side loader single axel garbage trucks in an amount not to exceed $647,442.00.  

 

DISCUSSION:  The new trucks will replace the current garbage trucks that are over 13 years old, (2006 

and 2010 models) that have exceeded their age in terms of reliability, repair limits and usage for the 

Sanitation divisions day-to-day collection of garbage for the residents of Miami Springs.  The life 

expectancy is typically 5-15 years however, wear and tear and maintenance of the vehicles play major 

roles in their overall usage. These trucks run long hours every week and take significant wear and tear 

running through uneven terrain in the alleyways.  

 

Funds for these two trucks were secured by the BCI Capital, Inc. (a subsidiary of City National Bank of 

Florida, the lender) Revenue Note approved by Council on October 25th, 2021 via Resolution 2021-3952 

at the cost of $557,500.00. A Letter of Intent was provided to Nextran Truck Center on November 9, 2021 

to secure two productions slots. On July 18, 2023, Nextran Truck Center advised that production of the 

previously approved models is scheduled for first and second quarter of 2024.  Due to an increase in 

materials the new purchase price per unit is $323,720.93.  Purchase order #230717 was issued to secure 

the first quarter production slot.  An increase to the purchase order is required to secure the second quarter 

production slot.  The difference of $116,765.86 will be from the Sanitation Fund balance.  

 

 

Submission Date and 

Time:    8/11/2023 12:15 
PM____ Submitted by: 

 

 

Department:  Public Works 

 

Prepared by:  Lizette Fuentes                      

 

 

Attachments:       Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head:   

  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

 

Funding: 
 

 

Dept./ Desc.:  Sanitation Equipment 

 

Account No.: 430-3401-534-6400            

 

Additional Funding:        

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $       530,676.00 

 

                       Current request:  $      116,766.00 

 

              Total vendor amount:  $       647,442.00 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING 
AN INCREASE OF $116,765.86 FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
TWO SANITATION TRUCKS FROM NEXTRAN 
CORPORATION D/B/A NEXTRAN TRUCK CENTER; 
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on November 8, 2021, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) Council 

adopted Resolution No. 2021-3957, approving the purchase of two side loader single axel 

sanitation trucks and related accessory equipment (the “Trucks and Accessory 

Equipment”) from Nextran Corporation d/b/a Nextran Truck Center (the “Vendor”) utilizing 

the terms and conditions of the Florida Sheriffs Association’s Contract No. FSA20-

VEH28.0; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase of the Trucks and Accessory Equipment are necessary 

to replace sanitation vehicles that reached the end of their useful lifecycle and to facilitate 

the provision of the City Public Works Department’s day-to-day operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Vendor has informed the City that production of the previously 

approved Trucks and Accessory Equipment is scheduled for the first and second quarters 

of 2024, but due to increases in material production costs, the price per vehicle has 

increased by $58,382.93; and 

WHEREAS, the Vendor has provided the City with a revised quote (the “Quote”), 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” that reflects the increase in price of $116,785.86 for the 

purchase of the Trucks and Accessory Equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the increase of $116,785.86 for 

the purchase of the Trucks and Accessory Equipment from the Vendor, for a total amount 

not to exceed $647,441.86 consistent with the Quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 2 

Section 2. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves the increase of 

$116,785.86 for the purchase of the Trucks and Accessory Equipment from the Vendor, 

for a total amount not to exceed $647,441.86 consistent with the Quote attached hereto 

as Exhibit “A.” 

Section 3. Implementation. That the City Manager is authorized to issue and 

execute any purchase order or required documentation for the purchases described in 

this Resolution, subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form and legality, and to 

take any action that is reasonably necessary to implement the purpose of this Resolution. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



Nextran Truck Centers - Miami

6801 NW 74th Avenue Salesperson: Gilberto Beato

Miami, FL  33166 PO Number: -

(305) 883-8506 or (800) 964-6225 Fax (305) 883-9808 Date: 7/18/2023

Name: CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS

Address: 201 WESTWARD DRIVE Phone: 305 805 5045

City: MIAMI SPRINGS State: FL Zip Code: 33166 County: MIAMI DADE

Quantity Year Make Model VIN # Year Make Model SERIAL #

2 2023 Mack LR 42R special order 2024 AMREP Side loadAMHASLTPG16-

2nd VIN - 3rd VIN   - - - - -

New **See Addendum for Additional VIN # - - - -

2nd Serial # - 3rd Serial # -

Year Make Model Body VIN # Trade-In Value Payoff

- - - - - -$                    -$                               

- - - - - -$                    -$                               

- - - - - -$                    -$                               

- - - - - -$                    -$                               

- - - - - -$                    -$                               

-$                    -$                               

**See Addendum for Additional Trade Ins

Per Truck Tire Credit: 223.32$          FET Tax Tax Exempt

323,720.93$                 GVW/GCW: 0 Sales Tax Tax Exempt

Federal Excise Tax -$                             

Total with FET 323,720.93$                 

-$                             

-$                             

Premium Maintenance Plan -$                             

323,720.93$                 

-$                             

323,720.93$                 

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

0

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

-$                             

323,720.93$                 

Date

Date

I have read and understand the above.  It is intended by my signature hereon that this be a binding, enforceable sales agreement.                                                                                                         

I further understand that the terms and conditions that follow are a true and integral part of this agreement. 

ADDITIONAL ITEMS

LOCALS AND COMMENTS

Customer request a term contract for ______ months.                                          

(Subject to approval by finance company.)

This agreement shall not be binding on Nextran Truck Centers until accepted by the General Manager.

Disposal/Temp Tags

Tag and Title

State Sales Tax on Fees

 - 

Due to the unprecedented challenges with the global supply 

chain, materials, semiconductors, inflation, shipping and transport

all quoted prices are subject to price increases/surcharges/County Surtax

Out of State Sales Tax

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

TRADE INFORMATION

Buyer's Order

Total Selling Price

PER TRUCK PRICING

TRUCK INFORMATION Body Details

Extended Warranty

APU

AMREP HX450ASL 14-38 YARD SIDE LOADER

(SPECS INCLUDED)

Subtotal

PRICE INCLUDES:

Less Trade-In Value

Net Trade Difference

Purchaser's Signature

Accepted by Nextran Truck Centers

 - 

additional fees.

 - 

 - 

Miscellaneous

 - 

 - 

Total Price per Truck

State Sales Tax

Misc. Tax
Total Price all Trucks 647,441.86$         

Payoff on Trade-In(s)

Down Payment



By: 

5.          Warranties.  DEALER MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OTHER THAN THE MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY ON NEW MOTOR VEHICLES.  

ALL USED MOTOR VEHICLES ARE SOLD BY PURCHASER "AS IS, WITHOUT WARRANTY," EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.  DEALER SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS 

ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE OF THE MOTOR VEHICLE(S) SOLD UNDER THIS SALES 

AGREEMENT, ALL OF WHICH PURCHASER HEREBY WAIVES TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW.  Purchaser acknowledges that no person is authorized 

to make any representations or warranties to the contrary, whether oral or written.      _________  (Initials of Purchaser)                                                                                                                                                            

4.        Commercially Reasonable Efforts. Dealer shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to make prompt delivery of the motor vehicle(s) contemplated hereby.  However, 

Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that time is not of the essence with respect to the transactions contemplated in this Sales Agreement.

(Purchaser Signature)

6.        Limitation of Liability; Waiver of Claims.  Purchaser shall have the right to fully inspect the motor vehicles sold under this Sales Agreement at the time of delivery.  Dealer 

shall not be liable for, and Purchaser’s acceptance of such motor vehicle constitutes Purchaser's waiver of, any and all claims, causes of action, losses and damages arising 

out of Dealer’s sale of the motor vehicle to Purchaser, including without limitation any and all actual, incidental or consequential damages arising out of: a) loss, damage or 

delays for any reason; b) failure to supply any property ordered hereunder; c) loss of use, loss of time, lost profits or income; d) changes in design, materials or specifications; e) 

modifications to the motor vehicle performed by others; and f) defects in design, materials or workmanship, in each case with respect to the motor vehicles purchased by 

Purchaser pursuant to this Sales Agreement.  

Purchaser shall indemnify, defend and hold Dealer and its affiliated companies and their officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against all loss, liability and 

expense, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, by reason of bodily injury including death, and property damage, sustained by any persons including but not limited to the 

officers, agents and employees of Purchaser, as a result of the maintenance, use, operation, servicing, transportation, defect in or failure of such motor vehicles, whether such 

bodily injury, death or property damage is due or claimed to be due in whole or in part, to any neglect, default, defect, fault, failure, act or omission, by or on behalf of Dealer, its 

officers, agents and employees or any other person, including but not limited to any claims of strict liability in tort, breach of warranty, and/or negligence.  Purchaser 

acknowledges that this waiver constitutes a material inducement for Dealer to consummate the transactions contemplated in this Sales Agreement and is subject to no 

exceptions.

7.        Modifications by Others.  Purchaser acknowledges that any requested modifications to the motor vehicles subject to this Sales Agreement to be performed by others are 

Purchaser's sole responsibility, and Purchaser shall pay Dealer for the cost of such modifications, regardless of whether Purchaser takes delivery of the vehicle.  Dealer is not 

liable for any defects in design, materials or workmanship, or any errors or omissions by such third parties.

8.        Trade-in Allowance.  The trade-in allowance set forth on page one of this Sales Agreement is based upon an appraisal by Dealer of the trade-in described herein in its 

present mechanical condition and with the equipment and attachments described on Dealer's appraisal sheet.  Such trade-in shall be subject to reappraisal at the time of 

delivery of the motor vehicle to be sold hereunder.  Purchaser shall be liable for any differences in the trade-in allowance due to changes in mechanical condition, equipment or 

attachments.

9.        Entire Agreement.  This Sales Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between Purchaser and Dealer concerning the 

subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, negotiations and discussions of the parties, whether written or oral.  No modification, course of 

conduct, amendment, supplement to or waiver of this Sales Agreement shall be binding unless made in writing and signed by both Purchaser and Dealer.

10.     Assignment.  This Sales Agreement may not be assigned by Purchaser without Dealer’s prior written consent, and any attempted assignment by Purchaser shall be null 

and void.  Subject to the foregoing, this Sales Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, permitted 

assigns and legal representatives.  There are no third party beneficiaries of this Sales Agreement.

11.     Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Right to Trial by Jury.  This Sales Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be governed 

by, and construed and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the State of Florida, without giving effect to the conflict of laws principles thereof.  Venue for any litigation, 

legal action or other proceedings arising out of or relating to this Sales Agreement shall lie solely in the courts of the State of Florida located in Dade County, Florida.  Purchaser 

and Dealer (a) agree that such courts shall have exclusive jurisdiction over any matters arising out of or related to this Sales Agreement and (b) hereby waive any and all claims 

to the effect that any of such courts constitutes an inconvenient forum.  The parties hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waive any right they may have to a trial by jury in any 

suit, action, proceeding, or counterclaim arising out of or relating to this SALES Agreement.

12.     Miscellaneous.  Risk of loss shall pass to the Purchaser upon delivery of the motor vehicle sold under this Sales Agreement.  A facsimile of this Sales Agreement shall 

have the same legal effect as an original hereof.  In the event of any litigation arising out of this Sales Agreement, the non-prevailing party shall reimburse the prevailing party 

for the reasonable attorneys’ fees and other expenses incurred by the prevailing party in connection therewith.

3.        Deposit.  Upon the execution of this Sales Agreement, Purchaser shall pay to Dealer a non-refundable deposit in the amount set forth on the first page of this Sales 

Agreement.  If Dealer fails to deliver the motor vehicle(s) as contemplated herein, Purchaser's sole remedy against Dealer shall be a return of the deposit as liquidated 

damages in full settlement of any and all claims relating to this Sales Agreement, and Purchaser hereby waives any claims to the contrary.  If Purchaser fails to pay the balance 

of the Selling Price, fails to take delivery of the motor vehicle for any reason or otherwise breaches its obligations under this Sales Agreement, Dealer shall be entitled to retain 

the entire deposit as liquidated damages in full settlement of any and all related claims. Purchaser and Dealer acknowledge that their actual damages arising out of any breach 

of this Sales Agreement would be difficult or impossible to calculate with specificity and that the foregoing treatment of the deposit constitutes mutually bargained liquidated 

damages and not a penalty.

1.        Acceptance.  The purchaser identified on the first page hereof (“Purchaser”) and Nextran Corporation, a Florida corporation d/b/a Nextran Truck Centers (“Dealer”) 

hereby agree that these Terms and Conditions are incorporated into, and constitute an integral part of, the Sales Agreement governing Purchaser’s purchase of motor vehicles 

from Dealer as more particularly described on the first page hereof.

2.        Purchaser's Payment of Charges.  Purchaser shall pay all charges arising out of or associated with this Agreement, whether correctly stated on page one of this Sales 

Agreement or otherwise, including without limitation all tag, license, tire, battery and lien fees, and all federal, state and local taxes.  Purchaser shall pay all amounts required to 

pay off and satisfy in full all liens on Purchaser's trade-in vehicle(s), as may be required by any such lien holder, regardless of whether the lien holder has quoted the wrong 

amount, the payoff amount has changed since the date of any such quote, or Purchaser has failed to disclose all lien holders on such vehicle(s).  If Purchaser chooses to pay 

any portion of the purchase price by using a bank or credit card, Purchaser shall pay all charges associated with the use of such card imposed on Dealer and shall promptly 

reimburse Dealer upon demand for any such costs arising after the consummation of any sale.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

fuentesl
Typewritten Text

fuentesl
Cross-Out

fuentesl
Cross-Out



           

Meeting Date: August 14, 2023 

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 

    

From:   Armando Guzman, Chief of Police 

    

Subject: K9 & Patrol Vehicles Purchase 
 
Recommendation: Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a 

Purchase Order to Garber Fleet Sales, utilizing Florida Sheriffs Association Contract FSA22-VEL 30.0 with a 

contract term expiration date of September 30, 2023, in the amount of $129,066.00 for three (3) 2023 Dodge 

Durango Pursuits AWD V8, priced at $43,022.00 each, as these funds are available in the FY22/23 Budget, 
pursuant to Section §31-11 (E)(5) of the City Code. 
 

Discussion/Analysis: Earlier this Fiscal year, City Council authorized the Police Department to purchase three 
(3) 2023 Ford Police Interceptors AWD Utility for the Police Department fleet from Duval Fleet Sales, in the 

amount of $172,693.57, utilizing Florida Sheriffs Association Contract FSA-VEL 28.0 with a contract term 

expiration date of September 30th, 2022. Two separate purchases orders were opened to reserve the three vehicles; 

one purchase order was for one (1) patrol vehicle and the other purchase order was for two (2) K9 Vehicles. After 
constant inquiry about updates pertaining to said vehicles, Duval Fleet Sales could not provide a delivery date, let 

alone even be able to provide a production date for these vehicles to date. Due to operational necessity and time 

constraints, the Police Department wishes to open a purchase order with Garber Fleet sales for the three Dodge 
Durango Pursuits in lieu of the two open purchase orders with Duval Fleet Sales. Canceling the orders with Duval 

Fleet Sales, will allow the police department to get three vehicles in a timely manner as they are on the lot in 

central Florida and will create a savings of $43,627.57, some of which will be allocated towards outfitting the 
three Durango Pursuits, one designated for Patrol use and two designated for K9 Officer use, with necessary 

Police Safety equipment (sirens, lights, cages, etc.). See attached documentation: Garber Fleet Sales’ Quote Sheet 

and Florida Sheriffs Association Contract FSA22-VEL30.0 Pursuit, Administrative, & Other Vehicles Contract. 

Submission Date and Time:    8/11/2023  8:31 AM      
 

Submitted by: 
 

 

Department:  Police Department 

 

Prepared by:  Ariadna Quintana                    

 

 

Attachments:       Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/Funded      Yes          No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head:   

  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

Funding: 

 
                         
Dept./ Desc.:           Police Vehicles 

 

Account No.:   001-2001-521.65-00     

 

Additional Funding:                  N/A 

 

                                        PO#s 230039 & 230043 
Amount previously approved:  $     172,693.57 

 

                       Current request:  $     129,066.00 

 

              Total vendor amount:  $     129,066.00 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, RESCINDING 
AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 2022-4034 THAT 
APPROVED THE PURCHASE OF THREE 2022 FORD 
POLICE INTERCEPTOR AWD UTILITY VEHICLES FROM 
DUVAL FORD, LLC; APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 
THREE DODGE DURANGO PURSUIT AWD V8 VEHICLES 
FROM GARBER CHRYSLER-DODGE TRUCK, INC. IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $129,066.00 UTILIZING THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS 
ASSOCIATION CONTRACT NO. FSA22-VEL 30.0 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 31-11(E)(5) OF THE CITY CODE; 
DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES AS SURPLUS 
PROPERTY; AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSITION 
OF SURPLUS PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2022, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) adopted 

Resolution No. 2022-4034, approving the purchase of three 2022 Ford Police Interceptor 

AWD Utility vehicles and related accessory equipment (including K9 equipment for two 

vehicles) from Duval Ford, LLC in an amount not to exceed $172,693.57 (the “Former 

Purchase”); and  

WHEREAS, the Former Purchase has not been fulfilled after nearly one year due 

to significant manufacturing delays; and 

WHEREAS, due to operational necessity and time constraints, the City Police 

Department can no longer wait for the fulfillment of the Former Purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to cancel the Former Purchase and purchase 

three (3) 2023 Dodge Durango Pursuits AWD V8 Vehicles (the “Vehicles”) to replace 

existing vehicles that have reached the end of their useful lifecycle and to facilitate the 

provision of the Police Department’s day-to-day operations; and 

WHEREAS, the type of purchase contemplated by the City has been competitively 

bid by the Florida Sheriffs Association, which has entered into Contract No. FSA22-VEL 

30.0 (the “FSA Contract”) with Garber Chrysler-Dodge Truck, Inc. (the “Vendor”), which 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 3 

 

local governments statewide may utilize for their own benefit; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City’s Code of 

Ordinances, the City Council seeks to approve the purchase of the Vehicles from the 

Vendor in an amount not to exceed $129,066.00 consistent with the FSA Contract and 

the Vendor’s quote, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Quote”), as the pricing offered 

pursuant to the FSA Contract is in the City’s best interest; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council declares the vehicles listed on Exhibit “B” attached 

hereto (the “Surplus Vehicles”) as surplus property as the Surplus Vehicles have become 

obsolete, have outlived their usefulness, have become inadequate for the public purposes 

for which they were intended, or are no longer needed for public purposes in light of the 

purchases authorized by this Resolution, and authorizes the City Manager to sell or 

otherwise dispose of the Surplus Vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Rescinding Resolution No. 2022-4034. That Resolution No. 2022-

4034 is hereby rescinded and repealed in its entirety. 

Section 3. Approval. That pursuant to Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City Code, the 

City Council hereby approves of the purchase of the Vehicles from the Vendor and the 

expenditure of budgeted funds in an amount not to exceed $129,066.00, consistent with 

the FSA Contract and the Vendor’s Quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  

Section 4. Declaration of Surplus Property. That the Surplus Vehicles have 

become obsolete, have outlived their usefulness, have become inadequate for the public 

purposes for which they were intended, or are no longer needed for public purposes. 

Accordingly, the City Council declares the Surplus Vehicles listed on Exhibit “B” attached 

hereto to be surplus personal property of the City. 

Section 5. Authorizing Sale or Disposition of Surplus Property. That the 

City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the Surplus Vehicles by public 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 3 of 3 

 

auction or other procedure determined by the City Manager to be in the best interests of 

the City. Any surplus property items acquired by the City pursuant to governmental grant 

programs shall only be disposed of in accordance with procedures and criteria applicable 

to such grant programs. 

Section 6. Implementation. That the City Manager is authorized to execute any 

purchase order or required documentation for the purchases described in this Resolution, 

subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form and legality, and to take any action 

that is reasonably necessary to implement the purpose of this Resolution. 

Section 7. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 





EXHIBIT “B” 
SURPLUS VEHICLES 

 
#648- 2010 Ford Explorer (CPO Vehicle)   

1FMEU6DE8AUA36639 
 
#629- 2009 Crown Victoria (K-9)   
2FAHP71V29X121926 
 
#685- 2015 Ford Explorer (K-9) 
 

1FM5K8AR7FGC08478 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPOINTING 
JUAN CARLOS “J.C.” JIMENEZ AS CITY MANAGER; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY 
RELATED TO THE CITY MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on February 14, 2023, City Manager William Alonso announced his 

retirement and resignation from the position of City Manager effective May 31, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, on February 27, 2023, the City Council expressed its interest in 

utilizing the services of an executive search firm to assist the City in selecting a new City 

Manager and subsequently selected and entered into an agreement with Mercer Group 

Florida, LLC to perform the executive search services; and 

WHEREAS, the City received numerous resumes from qualified individuals for the 

City Manager position; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted public interviews of candidates for the 

position of City Manager at its Regular City Council Meeting on June 29, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-4106, 

authorizing the Mayor, with the assistance of the City Attorney, to negotiate an 

employment agreement on behalf of the City with Juan “J.C.” Carlos Jimenez (“J.C. 

Jimenez”) as the top-ranked candidate for City Manager; and 

WHEREAS, after review and consideration, the City Council wishes to appoint J.C. 

Jimenez to serve as City Manager and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Employment 

Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” on behalf of the City 

(the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 4 

 

Section 2. Appointment of City Manager. That the City Council hereby 

appoints J.C. Jimenez as City Manager effective September 5, 2023, in accordance with 

the City Charter, the terms of this Resolution, and the Agreement.  

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to 

execute, on behalf of the City, the Agreement with J.C. Jimenez in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” subject to the approval of the City Attorney as to form, 

content, and legal sufficiency. 

Section 4. Implementation. That the City Mayor, the City Clerk, and the City 

Attorney are authorized to take all actions necessary to implement the purpose and intent 

of this Resolution.  

Section 5. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
  



Res. No. 23-   
Page 3 of 4 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

  



Res. No. 23-   
Page 4 of 4 

 

EXHIBIT A 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH CITY MANAGER 



 

1 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of 
the ___ day of August, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF MIAMI 
SPRINGS, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation located in Miami-Dade County (the 
"City"), and JUAN CARLOS JIMENEZ (“Mr. Jimenez” or the “City Manager"). The City and 
the City Manager may be referred to herein individually as a "Party" and collectively as the 
"Parties". 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 20, 2023, the City Council selected Mr. Jimenez as the top-ranked 
candidate for City Manager, which final appointment is subject to negotiation and approval of 
terms of an Employment Agreement between the Parties; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement setting forth the terms and 
conditions of Mr. Jimenez’s employment as City Manager.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of foregoing recitals, which are incorporated 
herein and made a part hereof by this reference, the mutual promises set forth in this Agreement, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which the Parties hereby 
acknowledge, the City and City Manager agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Duties 
 

A. The City Manager shall perform the functions and duties of his position as specified 
in the City Charter and Code of Ordinances, and shall perform such other legally permissible and 
proper duties and functions as the City Council shall assign from time to time.  

 
B. The City Manager shall discharge his duties in accordance with this Agreement, the 

City Charter and Code of Ordinances, and any applicable City employment policies, as may be 
established and amended from time to time by the City Manager and/or Council, and in a 
professional and respectable fashion as required of City Managers generally and as required by the 
standards of the Code of Ethics of the International City/County Management Association. 

 
C. The City Manager acknowledges that the duties of the City Manager will be 

variable, including work after the City's regular business hours, and on nights, weekends and 
holidays. The City Manager agrees to devote his best efforts and the time and energy necessary to 
perform fully the duties of City Manager as required under this Agreement and the City Charter. 
The City Manager further agrees to be exclusively employed by the City during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
D. The City Manager acknowledges that on-site and in-person work during the City’s 

regular business hours is essential to the duties of the City Manager position in order to meet the 
needs of the City Council and residents.  The City Manager further agrees that on-site and in-
person work during regular business hours shall be his primary mode of working.  The City 



 

2 
 

Manager shall not work remotely during regular business hours unless authorized by the City 
Mayor. 

 
E. In the event of the temporary absence of the City Manager, the Assistant City 

Manager shall assume the duties, powers, and responsibilities of the City Manager, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 4.06 of the City Charter. In the absence of the City Manager and Assistant 
City Manager, the City Council may by resolution appoint a person to act in the capacity of 
Assistant City Manager in accordance with the procedures of Section 30-06 of the City Code of 
Ordinances.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the City Manager becomes absent 
without City Council consent, or incapacitated, or shall, for any other reason not perform the duties 
of his office, the Council may declare the office of the City Manager vacant by a 3/5 vote of the 
Council and appoint a qualified person to assume the duties of City Manager, pursuant to Section 
4.06 of the City Charter.  
 
Section 2.  Term of Agreement 
 

A. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect 
until terminated by the City or the City Manager as provided herein.  City Manager acknowledges 
that employment with the City is on an at-will basis and that City Manager shall serve at the 
pleasure of the City Council. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, and/or otherwise 
interfere with the right of the City Council to terminate City Manager at any time, subject to the 
City Charter.  

 
B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right 

of the City Manager to resign at any time from the position of City Manager, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement.  

 
Section 3.  Salary 
 

A. The City agrees to pay the City Manager as compensation for his services under 
this Agreement an initial annual salary of $180,000.00, payable in biweekly installments at the 
same time as when other City employees are paid. This salary is subject to all legally required 
deductions.  Beginning October 1, 2024, and each fiscal year thereafter that the City Manager is 
employed by the City, the City Manager shall receive cost of living adjustments in the same 
amount as other management employees of the City should the City authorize cost of living 
adjustments for all other City employees. 

 
B. As part of the annual review process of the City budget, the City shall review the 

City Manager’s salary and may increase same in such amount and to such an extent as the City 
Council may determine desirable on the basis of the performance of the City Manager, in the City 
Council’s sole and absolute discretion. Nothing herein shall require the City to increase the 
compensation and/or other benefits of the City Manager.   
  



 

3 
 

Section 4.  Termination by the City  
 

A. In the event the City Council wishes to terminate the City Manager, it may do so at 
any time by a 3/5 vote of the City Council, in accordance with Section 4.02 of the City Charter.   

 
B. Pursuant to Section 4.02(b) of the City Charter, the City Council shall at the first 

regular meeting in October of each year, cause a vote of confidence to be taken as to the continued 
services of the City Manager.  In the event the City Council casts a vote of no confidence as to the 
City Manager’s continued services as prescribed by Section 4.02(b) of the City Charter, the City 
Council may elect to conduct a performance evaluation of the City Manager, or the City Council 
may take a vote to terminate the City Manager.   

 
C. In the event the City Council wishes to terminate the City Manager without cause 

on or before September 5, 2024, the City Manager shall receive a lump sum severance pay equal 
to 4 weeks of his regular base salary at the time of termination.  In the event the City Council 
wishes to terminate the City Manager without cause on or before September 5, 2025, the City 
Manager shall receive a lump sum severance pay equal to 6 weeks of his regular base salary at the 
time of termination.  In the event the City Council wishes to terminate the City Manager without 
cause on or before September 5, 2026, the City Manager shall receive a lump sum severance pay 
equal to 7 weeks of his regular base salary at the time of termination.  In the event the City Council 
wishes to terminate the City Manager without cause on or after September 5, 2027, the City 
Manager shall receive a lump sum severance pay equal to 12 weeks of his regular base salary at 
the time of termination, the City shall also continue to pay the premium for the City Manager’s 
health insurance for the period of time for which he receives severance after the effective date of 
his termination.  The City shall not provide the City Manager with his automobile allowance, 
cellular telephone allowance, or any other benefit or reimbursement (except that specifically set 
forth in this paragraph) beyond the date of his termination.  All severance payments (excluding the 
continuation of his health insurance benefits) shall be paid to the City Manager within thirty (30) 
days of the City Manager’s termination, provided the City Manager first executes a release and 
waiver of claims releasing the City from any liability in connection with his employment with the 
City. 

 
D. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.B above, in the event City Manager is 

terminated for misconduct as defined in Section 443.036(29), Florida Statutes, the City shall have 
no obligation to pay the City Manager any severance pay.  Misconduct includes, but is not limited 
to:  (i) breach of any material term or condition of this Agreement; (ii) conviction of a felony; (iii) 
gross insubordination; (iv) willful neglect of duty; or (v) adjudicated violation of the Florida Code 
of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, the Miami-Dade Conflict of Interest and Code of 
Ethics, the City Charter, or the City’s Conflict of Interest Ordinance. 
 
Section 5.  Termination by the City Manager 
 

A. In the event that the City Manager voluntarily resigns or retires during the Term of 
this Agreement, the City Manager shall provide the City with 60 days’ advance written notice, 
unless the parties agree in writing to a different period of time.  In the event of resignation by the 
City Manager under this Section, the City Manager shall not be entitled to receive severance 



 

4 
 

package, but the City shall pay the City Manager for his accrued unused vacation and sick leave 
(if applicable) calculated at the City Manager’s rate of pay in effect upon the date of resignation 
in accordance with City policy for non-union civilian employees. 

 
B. In the event that the City Manager voluntarily resigns with less than 60 days’ 

advance written notice, the City Council may elect to terminate the City Manager immediately or 
allow the City Manager to continue to serve until the date specified in the City Manager’s 
resignation.  In the event of a resignation or termination under this paragraph, notwithstanding any 
other provisions of this Section, the City Manager shall not be entitled to receive either severance 
payment or vacation or sick leave unless the City Council authorizes a payment for accrued unused 
leave. 

 
C.  If the City Manager is unable to perform his duties as specified in Section 1 of this 

Agreement for a period of 30 consecutive days or 60 non-consecutive days during any one-year 
period for any reason other than an approved Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) absence, the 
City Council may terminate this Agreement.  If the City Manager takes FMLA-approved leave 
and exhausts his statutorily-protected, FMLA-approved leave in any one-year period, the City 
Council may terminate this Agreement.  In the event of the City Manager’s death, this Agreement 
shall be terminated.  If this Agreement is terminated under this Section, the City Manager shall not 
be entitled to severance pay. 

 
D. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, or required by law, upon termination 

of this Agreement, the City Manager or his beneficiary shall be entitled to receive payment of any 
accrued or unused sick or vacation leave in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, as may 
be amended from time to time.  
 
Section 6.  Automobile Allowance and Communications Equipment 
 

A. The City will provide the City Manager with an automobile allowance of $450.00 
per month. The City also agrees to reimburse City Manager for mileage for travel outside of 
Miami-Dade or Broward Counties associated with business of the City at the same rate as other 
City employees are reimbursed.  

 
B. The City shall provide the City Manager with a cell phone so that the City Manager 

can be reached at all times for work-related issues and while away from City grounds.  The City 
Manager is expected to be reachable by the City Council and City employees as necessary and 
appropriate for the thorough and efficient operation of the City. 
 
Section 7.  Dues and Subscriptions  
 

A. The City agrees to pay City Manager's professional dues for membership in the 
International City/County Management Association and the Florida City/County Management 
Association.  If the City Manager is not a member of the International City/County Management 
Association, he shall become a member within ninety (90) days of execution of this Agreement.  
The City shall pay other dues and subscriptions on behalf of City Manager as are approved in the 
City's annual budget (on a line item basis) or as authorized separately by the City Council. 



 

5 
 

 
B. Upon submission of receipts by the City Manager to the City, the City agrees to 

reimburse the City Manager in an amount not to exceed $1,500.00 for the costs of travel and 
attendance incurred by the City Manager in connection with the International City/County 
Management Association Annual Conference occurring from September 30, 2023 through 
October 4, 2023. 

 
Section 8.  Professional Development  
 
The City agrees to budget and pay for the City Manager’s travel and attendance related to 
professional conferences and official travel, meetings, and participation in national, state, and local 
associations and organizations necessary and desirable for the good of the City, and for 
professional participation and continued growth and advancement, subject to prior City Council 
approval.   
 
Section 9.  Community Involvement 
 
The City acknowledges and encourages the City Manager’s current participation in community 
and civic organizations. The City agrees that the City Manager may continue participation in such 
organizations during the term of this Agreement, provided that such participation shall be 
conducted at City Manager's personal expense. The City acknowledges that the City Manager's 
participation in these organizations include, but is not limited to, participation (in person, or via 
the telephone or internet) in meetings, conferences, seminars, or other activities sponsored by the 
organizations.  If the City Manager will be away from work for one full day as a result of the City 
Manager’s participation in any community or other civic activity, the City Manager is required to 
provide advance notice to the Mayor and Council of the City. If the City Manager will be away 
from work for more than one full day as a result of the City Manager’s participation in any 
community or other civic activity, the City Manager is required to provide advance notice to and 
receive prior approval from the City Council.  
 
Section 10.  Vacation, Holidays and Sick Leave 
 

A. Commencing on the Effective Date of this Agreement, the City Manager shall earn 
vacation leave at a rate of five (5) days per four (4) months of service, or fifteen (15) days per year. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City Manager shall be permitted to advance and utilize up to five 
(5) vacation days during the period from November 5, 2023 through January 5, 2024. 

 
B.   In accordance with City Code of Ordinances Sec. 34-16(A)(5), the City Manager may 

only accrue up to a maximum of 272 hours of vacation leave, and when the City Manager has accrued 
272 hours of vacation leave, the City Manager shall stop accruing vacation leave until the City 
Manager’s vacation leave balance is reduced below 272 hours.  

 
C. The City Manager shall accrue Medical leave in accordance with City Code of 

Ordinances Sec. 34-16(C) titled “Medical Leave.”  
 



 

6 
 

D. Upon separation of employment, the City Manager will be eligible for payout for 
his accrued unused leave in accordance with applicable City policy, as modified only by Sections 
4 and 5 of this Agreement. 

 
E. The City Manager shall be entitled to paid holidays off in accordance with City 

Code of Ordinances Sec. 34-15 titled “Holiday and compensatory leave.” 
 
Section 11.  Health and Life Insurance 
 

A. The City Manager shall be entitled to City-sponsored health insurance on the same 
terms and at the same cost as provided to other full-time, permanent civilian employees of the City.   

 
B. The City shall provide the City Manager with life insurance coverage to the same 

extent as such coverages are provided to other full-time, permanent civilian employees of the City 
(as provided under, and subject to terms and conditions of, the City's applicable group insurance 
plans).  
 
Section 12.  Retirement  
 
The City Manager shall have the option of either: (1) membership in the City Employees 
Retirement System under the same terms and conditions as other full-time, permanent civilian 
employees; or (2) the City shall contribute 14.8970% of the City Manager's base salary into a 
401(a) retirement plan during his term of employment as City Manager.  The City Manager shall 
elect a retirement plan under this Section within seven (7) days of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement.  The City Manager further understands and agrees that the retirement plan election is 
irrevocable.   
 
Section 13.  Indemnification 
 
To the extent permitted by law and as limited by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes for tort actions, 
the City shall defend, save harmless and indemnify the City Manager against any tort, professional 
liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring 
in connection with the performance of the City Manager duties so long as the City Manager is 
acting within the scope of his employment. The City, or its insurance carrier, will defend all such 
claims and actions at its own cost through competent counsel through administrative, trial, and 
appellate proceedings pay or settle any such claim or suit or judgment rendered thereon. This 
Section shall survive cancellation or termination of this Agreement.  
 
Section 14.  Bonding 
 
The City agrees to bear the full cost of any fidelity, indemnity, or other bonds as may be approved 
by the City Council pursuant to the City Charter. 
  



 

7 
 

Section 15. Residency 
 
The City Manager agrees that he shall reside within Miami-Dade County and within commuting 
distance to the City during the term of this Agreement.  In accordance with Section 4.04 of the 
City Charter, the City Council acknowledges and agrees that the City Manager may reside outside 
of the City only if the City Manager resides within Miami-Dade County and within commuting 
distance to the City.   
 
Section 16. Code of Ethics 
 
The "Code of Ethics" promulgated by the International City/County Management Association 
(ICMA) is incorporated herein and by this reference made a part hereof. The City Manager in the 
performance of his duties agrees to be governed by the referenced Code of Ethics, as may be 
amended from time to time, and such other ethics policies as are in existence or may be adopted 
from time to time by the City.  
 
Section 17. Notice 
 
Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
through the United States Postal Services delivery, addressed as follows: 
 
City       Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
      201 Westward Drive  
      Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 
With a copy to the    Haydee S. Sera, Esq. 
City Attorney Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, PL 
 2800 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, Suite 1200 
 Coral Gables, FL 33134 
 
Manager                                                          Juan Carlos Jimenez 
                                                                          
 
Any of the foregoing Parties may, by written notice to the other Parties, designate any other address 
to which subsequent notices, certificate or other communications shall be sent.  Any notice shall 
be deemed given on the date such notice is delivered by hand or facsimile transmission or three 
days after the date mailed.  Any notice sent by electronic mail shall not be considered delivered 
unless the recipient has expressly confirmed receipt thereof.  
 
Section 18.  Other Terms and Conditions 
 

A. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held to be 
unconstitutional, illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.  

 



 

8 
 

B. The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by the 
other shall not operate or be construed as a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by that 
party.  

 
C. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law 

or personal representative of the City Manager. 
 
D. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties. It may not be 

changed, except by an Agreement in writing signed by the parties. 
 
E. Florida law shall govern the construction, interpretation, and enforcement of this 

Agreement and venue for any litigation which may arise that in any way involves this Agreement 
shall be in Miami-Dade County in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
F. Upon City Manager's death, the City's obligations under this Agreement shall 

terminate except for: 
 

1. Transfer of ownership of retirement funds, if any, to his designated 
beneficiaries; 

2. Payment of accrued leave balances in accordance with this Agreement to his 
designated beneficiaries;  

3. Payment of all life insurance benefits in accordance with the City's insurance 
policies or plans. 
 

G. The parties acknowledge that each has shared equally in the drafting and 
preparation of this Agreement and accordingly, no court or administrative hearing officer 
construing this Agreement shall construe it more strictly against one party than the other and every 
covenant, term and provision of this Agreement shall be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning. 

 
H. It is understood and agreed that this document incorporates and includes all prior 

negotiations, correspondence, conversations, agreements, and/or understandings applicable to the 
matters contained herein and that the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements, or 
understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained in this 
document. Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall be predicated 
upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

 
I. No modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained 

herein shall be effective unless approved by the City Council and agreed upon by the Parties. Any 
approved and agreed upon changes to this Agreement shall be reduced to writing with the same 
formality as this Agreement.    

 
J. The rights and obligations herein granted are personal in nature and cannot be 

assigned, delegated, or transferred by the City Manager, except as provided in Section (1)(D) 
herein. 

 



 

9 
 

K. In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, 
each party in such action or proceeding shall bear their own attorney’s fees.  

 
L. Any calculation or computations required herein shall be made by the City Finance 

Director, subject to verification by the City Attorney. The Manager shall be promptly furnished a 
copy of such calculations and computations.  

 
M. On any matter which is not covered or addressed by this Agreement or the City 

Charter, the general City personnel policies, as amended from time to time, and as may apply, shall 
control, subject to confirmation by the City Attorney.  

 
N. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate or counterparts, each of which shall 

be deemed an original and all of which together shall be deemed one and the same instrument.    
 
 

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank. 
Signature page follows.]



 

10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed and executed, 
as of the date first written above.  
 
      CITY MANAGER 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Juan Carlos Jimenez 
 
 
 
      MIAMI SPRINGS 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE SOLE USE OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
WEISS, SEROTA, HELFMAN,  
COLE AND BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 

q

           

Meeting Date: 8/14/2023 

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

 

From:   Chris Chiocca, Finance Director 

    

Subject:  Uniform method of collection of non-ad valorem revenues 

 

Recommendation:      

 “In accordance with Resolution 2009-3448, the Administration requests 

approval of a 4% increase in sanitation fees and an increase in recycling fees 

of 81.25% which is the FY22-23 increase assessed by the County for disposal 

and recycling fees.” 
 

Discussion/Analysis: 

 

During September 2022, the City received notice from Miami Dade Solid Waste Management 

(attachment a) that their disposal fees will increase by 4% and recycling from $3.04 per month to $5.51 

per month effective October 1, 2022. The CPI for Miami Dade is higher but increases by the county are 

capped at 4% for disposal fees only nor recycling since these are contracted out. We recommend 

approval of these increases for next fiscal year in order to cover the increases in operating costs of the 

department. 

 

Since the City includes the annual sanitation charges on the property tax bills, it was too late to make 

any changes for the tax bills that were mailed out in October 2022. We are hereby requesting approval 

of the new fee which will be included in the tax bills that will be mailed out in October 2023. The 

current annual sanitation/recycling fee is $709.32. The new fee will be $765.96. this increase represents 

$4.72 a month to the single family residential customers. Multi-family dwellings will go from the 

current $19.98 per unit to $21.76 per unit. 

 

The following is a history of prior increases: 

Fiscal Year             % Increase          Old annual rate         New annual rate 

FY14-15         None          $628.00         no change 

FY15-16                             2.3%                  $628.00                     $642.00 

FY16-17                          None                   $642.00                    no change 

FY17-18                           0.78%                 $642.00                     $648.00 

FY18-19                    2.71%                 $648.00                     $665.16 

FY19-20                    1.13%                 $665.16                     $672.72 

FY20-21         1.40%                 $672.72                     $682.08 



FY21-22                                        4.00%                 $682.08                     $709.322 

FY22-23 (current request)            4.00%                 $709.32                      $765.96 

 

 

 

In accordance with paragraph c) Annual Cost of Living Adjustments in the rate chart approved under 

resolution 2009-3448 by Council as well as the additional increase for operating costs, the 

Administration requests approval to increase our sanitation rate from the current $56.07 per month to 

$58.32 per month, and our recycling fee from $3.04 to $5.51 per month, effective October 1, 2023. If 

Council approves this increase, we are attaching the required resolution for their approval. 

 

Fiscal Impact (If applicable):   
 

This increase represents approx. $100,000 in additional revenues that will offset the increased costs from 

the County’s increase as well as increased operating costs of the operation. 

 

 

Additional discussion 

 

It has come to the City’s attention that the Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser’s Office no longer 

provides the required notice for sanitation and recycling fee increases in the mailed tax bills on behalf of 

the City.  The City has provided the required mailed notice of the increase in rates.  To avoid future 

notice issues, City Staff is requesting to put in place a maximum cap for future sanitation and recycling 

fee increases.  This would enable the City to increase the rates in the future up to the maximum amounts 

without the need for providing additional mailed notice of sanitation and recycling fee increases. 

 

The maximum cap for future sanitation fee increases were calculated based on the County’s 4% CPI cap 

on annual rate increases and recycling fee increases were based upon actual increases calculated over a 

period of five (5) years as follows: 

 

Service  FY2023/2024 Rate (per unit /year) Maximum Rate (per unit/year) 

SF- Garbage $341.76 $415.80 

SF- Trash $358.08 $435.66 

SF- Recycling $ 66.12 $126.12 

SF-Total $765.96 $977.58 

MF- Garbage $ 56.40 $ 68.62 

MF- Trash $177.12 $215.49 

MF- Recycling $ 27.60  $ 87.60 

MF-Total $261.12 $371.71 

 



 
 

 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE 

COLLECTION OF GARBAGE, TRASH AND RECYCLING 

SERVICE FEES USING THE UNIFORM METHOD OF 

COLLECTION OF NON-AD VALOREM REVENUES; 

PROVIDING FOR MAXIMUM FEES FOR GARBAGE, TRASH 

AND RECYCLING SERVICES; DIRECTING THE 

PREPARATION OF A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE 

IMPOSITION OF GARBAGE, TRASH AND RECYCLING 

SERVICE FEES FOR FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 

1, 2023 AND THE MAXIMUM FEES; DIRECTING THE 

PROVISION OF NOTICE THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “City”) provides garbage, trash and 

recycling collection services (the “Services”) for residential and commercial customers within 

the City; and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 93.07(b) City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”), the 

City Council of the City (the “City Council”) is authorized to impose fees for the Services (the 

“Fees”); and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council provided for the collection of the Fee using the non-ad 

valorem levy, collection and enforcement method as provided in Chapter 197, Florida 

Statutes (the “Uniform Method of Collection Act”); and 

 WHEREAS, on June 12, 2023, the City Council pursuant to Resolution 2023-4097 (the  

Rate Resolution”), adopted a revised fee schedule increasing the Fees as set forth on Exhibit 

“A” attached to the Rate Resolution. 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to implement the Fees adopted by the Rate 

Resolution, establish Maximum Fees and use the Uniform Method of Collection with respect 



 
 

 2 

to the revised Fees; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Uniform Method of Collection Act, particularly 

Section 197.3632(4)(a), Florida Statutes, as amended, the City Council desires to adopt a 

resolution, after a public hearing which would increase the Fees in excess of the amount 

established for last fiscal year and adopt Maximum Fees; and 

WHEREAS the City Council finds that it is necessary to set a public hearing and 

provide for notice of such public hearing in accordance with the Uniform Method of Collection 

Act, specifically Section 197.3632(4)(b) to all affected property owners; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KEY BISCAYNE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals.  That each of the above-stated recitals are hereby adopted, 

confirmed, and incorporated herein. 

Section 2. Authority.  That this Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 166.021 and 166.041, Florida Statutes, the Uniform Method of Collection Act, and 

other applicable provisions of law. 

Section 3. Purpose and Definitions. That this Resolution is to set the date and 

time of the public hearing, to provide for the required notices to be provided under the 

Uniform Method of Collection Act, and to provide for a proposed increase to the Fees and 

adoption of Maximum Fees.  All capitalized words and terms not otherwise defined herein 

shall have the meanings set forth in the Uniform Method of Collection Act.   



 
 

 3 

Section 4. Ratification of the Rate Resolution and Adoption of Maximum 

Garbage, Trash and Recycling Collection Services Fee.  

4.1 The City currently has an agreement with Miami-Dade County to provide for the 

Services (the “Service Agreement”).  The Services Agreement provides for an increase in the 

cost of providing such Services based upon the increase in the Consumer Price Index for All 

Urban Consumers (the “CPI-U”), but no more than four percent (4%) per year.   

4.2 For the purposes of Fiscal Year 2023-2024, the City Council adopted the Rate 

Resolution, which is hereby ratified and confirmed.   

4.3. In order to provide for increases in costs for subsequent years, the City has 

determined to set the Maximum Fees to be collected in any Fiscal Year subsequent to 2023-

2024, as set forth below: 

a) Single-Family (SF) residential dwelling, serviced by the automated collection 

system, the limit shall be one (1) 90-gallon automated system container; twice weekly 

collection for garbage and weekly collection for trash. These are per unit charges.  

Service  Maximum Rate (per unit/month) 

SF- Garbage $34.65 

SF- Trash $36.30 

SF- Recycling $10.51 

 

b) Multi-family (MF) dwellings of 3 or 4 units, including auxiliary or separate 

units within the residential areas, limit shall be 90-gallon automated system 

container(s) sufficient to contain garbage and waste per property; twice weekly 

garbage collection; fees shall be charged per living unit; and weekly for trash.  

 



 
 

 4 

Service  Maximum Rate (per unit/month) 

MF- Garbage $ 5.72 

MF- Trash $17.96 

MF- Recycling $ 7.30 

 

4.4 The City intends to collect the Fees using the method provided in the Uniform 

Method of Collections Act.  Any increase in the Fees beyond the adopted Maximum Rate as 

adopted requires the City to first have a public hearing after providing notice as set forth in 

Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

Section 5. Preliminary Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Roll. 

5.1 The City Manager has prepared, a Garbage, Trash and Recycling Collection 

Service Fee non-ad valorem assessment roll for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024, in the manner 

provided in the Uniform Method of Collection Act (the “Preliminary Assessment Roll”).  Such 

Preliminary Assessment Roll shall contain the following information, which is set forth in 

Exhibit “A,” hereto:  (1) a summary description of each Property within the City conforming to 

the description contained on the most recent Miami-Dade County Tax Roll, and/or Folio 

Number, (2) the name and address of the owner of record of the Property as shown on the 

most recent Miami-Dade County Tax Roll (except as exempted by Chapter 119 Florida 

Statutes, (3) the amount of the Total Cost to be assessed against all the Properties for the 

total number of Properties located within the City, (4) the Fee for each Property  for Fiscal 

Year 2023-2024, and (5) the Maximum Fee for each Property that may be imposed during 

any subsequent Fiscal Year.  The Preliminary Assessment Roll shall be open to public 

inspection.  The foregoing shall not be construed to require that the Preliminary Assessment 



 
 

 5 

Roll be in printed form if the amount of the annual Fee for each Property can be determined 

by use of a computer terminal available to the public.   

5.2 It is hereby ascertained, determined, and declared that the foregoing method of 

determining the Fees for the Service is a fair and reasonable method of apportioning the 

costs among parcels of Property receiving the Service, and the use of the Uniform Method of 

Collection Act for collection is an efficient mechanism to address payment delinquencies and 

recover the Fees which is allocable to specific parcels of Property receiving the Service. 

Section 6. Authorization of Public Hearing; Notice.  The City Council hereby finds 

and determines that a public hearing is to be held by the City Council at City Hall located at 

 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 at 6:45 p.m. on September 11, 2023, or as 

soon as practicable thereafter, to be set forth in the notice of meeting, to consider: (A) the 

purpose of the Fees, (B) the estimated annual costs for the Services for Fiscal Year 2023-

2024 and the Maximum Fees to be established, (C) imposition and apportionment 

methodology of the costs to the Properties receiving the Service, and (D) collection of the 

Fees pursuant to the Uniform Method of Collection Act commencing with the tax bill to be 

mailed in November 2023. 

Section 7. Notice by Mail.  

7.1 The City Manager shall, at the time and in the manner specified in Section 

197.3632(4)(b), Florida Statutes, direct the provision of first class United States mailed notice 

of the public hearing authorized by Section 6 hereof by the City Clerk to each property owner 

of the Properties receiving the Service at the address indicated on the Tax Roll.  Such notice 

shall contain the information required for mailed notice set forth in Section 197.3632(4)(b), 

Florida Statutes a form of which is attached as Exhibit “B”. 



 
 

 6 

7.2 Proof of such mailings shall be made by affidavit of the City Clerk and be kept 

on filed with the City Clerk 

Section 8.   Notice by Publication. That the City Manager shall direct the City 

Clerk to publish a notice of the public hearing authorized by Section 6 hereof in the manner 

and the time provided in Section 197.3632(4)(b), Florida Statutes. Such notice shall contain 

the information required by Section 197.3632(4)(b), Florida Statutes for published notice. 

Section 9. Revisions to Assessments.  If any Fees made under the provisions of 

the Rate Resolution, this Resolution or the resolution adopted after the public hearing is 

either in whole or in part annulled, vacated, or set aside by the judgment of any court, or if the 

City Council is satisfied that any such Fee is so irregular or defective that the same cannot be 

enforced or collected, or if the City Council has failed to include or omitted any Property on 

the Preliminary Assessment Roll which property should have been so included, the City 

Council may take all necessary steps to impose a new  Fee against any such Property 

receiving the Service, following as nearly as may be practicable, the provisions of the 

Uniform Method of Collection Act and in case such second Fee is annulled, vacated, or set 

aside, the City Council may obtain and impose other Fees until a valid Fee for the Service is 

imposed. 

Section 10. Effective Date.   This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

passage and adoption. 

Section 11. The foregoing Resolution was offered by ________who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by __________and upon being put to a vote, the vote 

was as follows: 



 
 

 7 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin    ___ 

Councilmember Jacky Bravo   ___ 

Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. ___ 

Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.  ___ 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell   ___ 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of August, 2023. 

 

 

       

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 

       MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  

CITY CLERK 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 

 

 

       

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 

CITY ATTORNEY 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

FOR PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL 

(ON FILE IN CITY CLERK’S OFFICE) 
 

       

 

 
 

 

 

  



 

 

EXHIBIT B  

FORM OF MAILED NOTICE 
 

 

 

 

 

 



***** NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER ***** 

 
  City of Miami Springs, Florida   

201 Westward Drive   
Miami Springs, Florida 33166  

 
 
 

[insert name of property owner]  Tax Parcel No.: ___________ 
[insert address from tax roll]  Legal Description: 
_________________________ 
_________________________  _____________________  
  _____________________ 
  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

As required by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, notice is given by the City of Miami Springs, 

Florida (the "City"), that annual fees for the garbage, trash and recycling collection will be collected using 

the tax bill collection method, may be levied on your property for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023- 

September 30, 2024. 

The purpose of these fees is to fund the costs of garbage, trash and recycling collection benefiting 

residential properties consisting of a single household located within the City, including garbage, trash and 

recycling services.  The revenue to be collected within the City from the fees, is estimated to be 

$1,116,558.00, including the cost of collection. The annual garbage, trash and recycling service fees are 

based on the number of households contained on each parcel of property plus any unpaid or delinquent 

charges for garbage, trash and recycling collection services.   

The following is a summary of the non-ad valorem fee being levied on the above parcel for the fiscal 

year beginning October 1, 2023: The number of Single Family Units for the above parcel is 1. 

 

Service  FY2023/2024 Rate (per unit /year) Maximum Rate (per unit/year) 

SF- Garbage $341.76 $415.80 

SF- Trash $358.08 $435.66 

SF- Recycling $ 66.12 $126.12 

SF-Total $765.96 $977.58 

The annual garbage, trash and recycling collection service fee for the above parcel is $765.96 

for each single family household for fiscal year commencing October 1, 2023. 

(Continued On Back) 

 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
NOTICE TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE FOR 

COLLECTION OF NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENT 
NOTICE DATE:   August 15, 2023 



(Continued From Front) 

The maximum annual garbage, trash and recycling service fee for the above parcel is $977.58 

for each single family household for the City’s fiscal year commencing October 1, 2023, and each fiscal 

year thereafter.  

A public hearing will be held by the City Council at City Hall located at 201 Westward Drive, 

Miami Springs, FL at 6:45 p.m. on September 11, 2023, or as soon as practicable thereafter, for the purpose 

of receiving public comment on the proposed fees. All Single Family and Multi Family residential 

households receiving garbage, trash and recycling collection services within the City were mailed individual 

notices similar to this one.  Subsequently, unless the fees are in excess of the Maximum Rates, only owners 

of reclassified property which resulted in an increased fee, or owners of property not included on the prior 

year’s assessment roll will receive updated mailed notice in addition to the annual published notice. You 

and all other affected property owners have a right to appear at the hearing and to file written objections 

with the City Council within 20 calendar days of the date of this notice. If you decide to appeal any decision 

made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at the hearing, you will need a record of the 

proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made, including the testimony and evidence 

upon which the appeal is to be made.  In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing a special accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this proceeding should contact the City 

Clerk at (305) 805-5006 at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the hearing. 

Unless proper steps are initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction to secure relief within 20 days from the 

date of City Council action at the above hearing (including the method of apportionment, the fee rate and 

the imposition of the fee), such action shall be the final adjudication of the issues presented. 

Copies of the Assessment Resolution, and the preliminary assessment roll are available for 

inspection at the City Clerk’s office located at 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  

All of the garbage, trash and recycling service non-ad valorem fee amounts shown on this notice and 

the ad valorem taxes for the above parcel will be collected on the ad valorem tax bill mailed in November 

2023.  Failure to pay the fees will cause a tax certificate to be issued against the property which may result 

in a loss of title.  

If there is a mistake on this notice, it will be corrected.  If you have any questions regarding your 

solid waste and recycling service fee, please contact the City Finance Department at (305) 805-5000. 

Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:45 p.m. 

 

*****THIS IS NOT A BILL***** 



***** NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER ***** 

 
  City of Miami Springs, Florida   

201 Westward Drive   
Miami Springs, Florida 33166  

 
 
 

[insert name of property owner]  Tax Parcel No.: ___________ 
[insert address from tax roll]  Legal Description: 
_________________________ 
_________________________  _____________________  
  _____________________ 
  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

As required by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, notice is given by the City of Miami Springs, 

Florida (the "City"), that annual fees for the garbage, trash and recycling collection will be collected using 

the tax bill collection method, may be levied on your property for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023- 

September 30, 2024. 

The purpose of these fees is to fund the costs of garbage, trash and recycling collection benefiting 

residential properties consisting of a single households located within the City, including garbage, trash and 

recycling services.  The revenue to be collected within the City from the fees, is estimated to be 

$1,116,558.00, including the cost of collection. The annual garbage, trash and recycling service fees are 

based on the number of households contained on each parcel of property plus any unpaid or delinquent 

charges for garbage, trash and recycling collection services.   

The following is a summary of the non-ad valorem fee being levied on the above parcel for the fiscal 

year beginning October 1, 2023: The number of Multi-Family Units for the above parcel is 1. 

 

Service  FY2023/2024 Rate (per unit /year) Maximum Rate (per unit/year) 

MF- Garbage $ 56.40 $ 68.62 

MF- Trash $177.12 $215.49 

MF- Recycling $ 27.60  $ 87.60 

MF-Total $261.12 $371.71 

The annual garbage, trash and recycling collection service fee for the above parcel is $261.12 

for each multi-family household for fiscal year commencing October 1, 2023. 

(Continued On Back) 

 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
NOTICE TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE FOR 

COLLECTION OF NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENT 
NOTICE DATE:   August 15, 2023 



(Continued From Front) 

The maximum annual garbage, trash and recycling service fee for the above parcel is $371.71 

for each multi-family household for the City’s fiscal year commencing October 1, 2023, and each fiscal year 

thereafter.  

A public hearing will be held by the City Council at City Hall located at 201 Westward Drive, 

Miami Springs, FL at 6:45 p.m. on September 11, 2023, or as soon as practicable thereafter, for the purpose 

of receiving public comment on the proposed fees. All Single Family and Multi Family residential 

households receiving garbage, trash and recycling collection services within the City were mailed individual 

notices similar to this one.  Subsequently, unless the fees are in excess of the Maximum Rates, only owners 

of reclassified property which resulted in an increased fee, or owners of property not included on the prior 

year’s assessment roll will receive updated mailed notice in addition to the annual published notice. You 

and all other affected property owners have a right to appear at the hearing and to file written objections 

with the City Council within 20 calendar days of the date of this notice. If you decide to appeal any decision 

made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at the hearing, you will need a record of the 

proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made, including the testimony and evidence 

upon which the appeal is to be made.  In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing a special accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this proceeding should contact the City 

Clerk at (305) 805-5006 at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the hearing. 

Unless proper steps are initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction to secure relief within 20 days from the 

date of City Council action at the above hearing (including the method of apportionment, the fee rate and 

the imposition of the fee), such action shall be the final adjudication of the issues presented. 

Copies of the Assessment Resolution, and the preliminary assessment roll are available for 

inspection at the City Clerk’s office located at 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  

All of the garbage, trash and recycling service non-ad valorem fee amounts shown on this notice and 

the ad valorem taxes for the above parcel will be collected on the ad valorem tax bill mailed in November 

2023.  Failure to pay the fees will cause a tax certificate to be issued against the property which may result 

in a loss of title.  

If there is a mistake on this notice, it will be corrected.  If you have any questions regarding your 

solid waste and recycling service fee, please contact the City Finance Department at (305) 805-5000. 

Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:45 p.m. 

 

*****THIS IS NOT A BILL***** 



PUBLIC NOTICE 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE FOR 
COLLECTION OF GARBAGE, TRASH AND RECYCLING FEES IN THE CITY 

OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
 

Notice is hereby given by the City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “City”) that the City will conduct 
a public hearing to consider imposing annual non-ad valorem fees for the purpose of funding annual fees 
for the garbage, trash and recycling collection services and setting maximum rates to be collected using the 
tax bill collection method. 

The public hearing will be held by the City Council on September 11, 2023 at 6:45 p.m. at 
City Hall, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 or as soon as practicable thereafter, for the 
purpose of receiving public comment on the proposed fees.  All affected property owners have a right to 
appear at the hearing and to file written objections with the City Council within 20 days of this notice.  

If you decide to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered 
at the hearing, you will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is 
made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made 

Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if you decide to appeal any decision made by the 
City Council with respect to any matter considered at the hearing or at any subsequent meeting to which 
the City Council has continued its deliberations, you will need a record of the proceedings and may need 
to ensure that a verbatim record is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to 
be made.  In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special 
accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this proceeding should contact the City Clerk, at 305-805-
5006, with request for auxiliary aids or services at least two (2) business days before the meeting.  

The proposed fee for single-family is $765.96 per unit and for multi-family is $261.12 per unit will 
begin to be collected on the ad valorem tax bill to be mailed in November 2023, as authorized by Section 
197.3632, Florida Statutes.  Failure to pay the fee will cause a tax certificate to be issued against the property 
which may result in a loss of title.  The City Council intends to collect the fees annually.  

Unless proper steps are initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction to secure relief within 20 days 
from the date of City Council action at the above hearing (including the method of apportionment, the fee 
rate and the imposition of the fee), such action shall be the final adjudication of the issues presented. 

If you have any questions, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006. 

MAP OF AREA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
City of Miami Springs 



           

Meeting Date: 8/14/2023  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

From:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 

    

Subject:  Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. Planning Services Increase  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by staff that Council a First Amendment to the Continuing 

Professional Service Agreement with Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. (CGA) to increase 

compensation by $11,000 for fiscal year 2022-23, for a total not to exceed $31,000 for fiscal year 2022-

23. These services are for “Professional Planning Services/General, Day-to-Day Planning Services” for 

all city planning needs, which will carry us through September 30, 2023.  Additional funds will need to 

come from the City’s fund balance.  

 

 

DISCUSSION:   On May 22nd, 2023 Council approved a Resolution – Approving a Contract with Calvin 

Giordano Associates for Planning and Zoning Services. Compensation for these services were set at an 

amount not to exceed $20,000.00 for “Professional Planning Services/General, Day-to-Day Planning 

Services” and an amount not to exceed budgeted funds for any future fiscal years. The $20,000.00 was 

based on the purchasing authority of the City Manager which did not require Council approval at the time. 

Some of funding increases for the remainder of fiscal year 2022-23 is due to unanticipated onboarding 

costs. 

 

 

 

Submission Date and Time:    8/10/2023 10:35 AM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 

 

Department:  Planning 

 

Prepared by:  Tammy Romero 

 

 

Attachments:        Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head:   
  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

 

Funding: 
 

 

Dept./ Desc.:  Planning Projects as needed 

 

Account No.:  

 

Additional Funding:        

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $       20,000.00 

 

                       Current request:  $      11,000.00 

 

              Total vendor amount:  $      31,000.00 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING A 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO A CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CALVIN, GIORDANO & 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR GENERAL PLANNING AND 
ZONING SERVICES TO INCREASE COMPENSATION BY 
$11,000 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2023, the City of Miami Springs  (the “City”) entered into 

a continuing professional services agreement (the “Agreement”) with Calvin, Giordano & 

Associates, Inc. (the “Consultant”) for general planning and zoning services 

(the “Services”); and  

WHEREAS, the City and the Consultant have mutually agreed to modify the terms 

of the Agreement and provide additional funds in an amount not to exceed $11,0000 to 

cover unanticipated onboarding costs, for a total amount not to exceed $31,000 for the 

remainder of fiscal year 2022-23; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that the City Council approve the First 

Amendment to the Agreement and authorize the City Manager to execute the First 

Amendment, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

(the “First Amendment”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the First Amendment to the 

Agreement and authorize the City Manager to execute the First Amendment on behalf of 

the City; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves the First 

Amendment to the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 3. Authorization. That The City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the First Amendment of the Agreement in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” subject to the approval of the City Attorney as to form, 

content, and legal sufficiency. 

Section 4. Implementation. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to take 

such further action as may be necessary to implement the purpose and provisions of this 

Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 
adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 
vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th  day of August, 2023. 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 1 of 3 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

AND 

CALVIN, GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT to the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(the “First Amendment”) is entered into as of the    day of    , 2023 
(the “Effective Date of First Amendment”), by and between the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, a 
Florida municipal corporation, (the “City”) and CALVIN, GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES, 
INC., a Florida for-profit corporation (hereinafter, the “Contractor”), collectively referred to as 
the “Parties.” 

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2023, the City of Miami Springs  (the “City”) entered into a 
continuing professional services agreement (the “Agreement”) with Calvin, Giordano & 
Associates, Inc. (the “Consultant”) for general planning and zoning services (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Consultant have mutually agreed to modify the terms of the 
Agreement and provide additional funds in an amount not to exceed $11,0000 for unanticipated 
onboarding costs, for a total amount not to exceed $31,000 for the remainder of the 2022-23 Fiscal 
Year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, 
the City and Contractor agree as follows: 1 

1. Recitals Incorporated.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated 
herein. 

2. Amending Section 3, “Compensation and Payment,” of the Agreement. 
Section 3.1 of Section 3, “Compensation and Payment,” of the Agreement is hereby amended and 
replaced as follows: 

3. Compensation and Payment.   
3.1. Compensation for Services provided by Consultant shall be in accordance with 
the Rate Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” Compensation from the Effective 
Date through September 30, 20243, shall be in an amount not to exceed $20,000.00 
$31,0000 for the Services referenced in Exhibit A as “Professional Planning 
Services/General, Day-to-Day Planning Services” and an amount not to exceed 
budgeted funds for future fiscal years. 
 
3. Conflict; Amendment Prevails.  In the event of any conflict or ambiguity 

between the terms and provisions of this First Amendment and the terms and provisions of the 

                                                 
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words.  



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 2 of 3 

Agreement, the terms and provisions of this First Amendment shall control.  

4. Agreement Ratified. Except as otherwise specifically set forth or modified herein, 
all terms in the Agreement are hereby ratified and affirmed and shall remain unmodified and in 
full force and effect in accordance with its terms. 

5. Defined Terms. All initial capitalized terms used in this First Amendment but not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning ascribed thereto in the Agreement.   

6. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. An executed facsimile or electronic copy of this First Amendment shall have 
the same force and effect as an original hereof. 

 
 

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.  
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS.] 

 
 
  



City of Miami Springs, FL    Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year as first 
stated above. 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
 
 
 
By:        
Tammy Romero 
Interim City Manager 
 
Attest:  
 
 
By:        
Erika Gonzalez, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:  
 
 
By:        
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
City Attorney 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
City of Miami Springs 
Attn: City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 
305-805-5011 (telephone) 
alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Attn: Haydee Sera, Esq.  
City of Miami Springs Attorney 
2800 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 12th Floor 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
hsera@wsh-law.com (email) 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Entity:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
       
       
       
       
     (telephone) 
     (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
       
       
       
       
     (telephone) 
     (email) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN 
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY RELATING TO THE 
REESTABLISHMENT AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE SIX-
CENT LOCAL OPTION GAS TAX; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) has historically received a share 

of the six-cent local option gas tax revenues (“Gas Tax”) collected by Miami-Dade 

County (the “County”) for roadway and public transportation expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the County’s Gas Tax Ordinance is set to expire on August 31, 

2023; and 

WHEREAS, in order to meet the statutory requirements to reestablish the County’s 

Gas Tax, the County must enter into an interlocal agreement with enough municipalities 

that, in the aggregate, represent a majority of the population residing within the 

incorporated area of the County; and 

WHEREAS, the County has proposed entering into an Amended and Restated 

Interlocal Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Agreement”), relating to the 

reestablishment and distribution of the Gas Tax; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into the Agreement with the County in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. The City Council approves the Agreement with the County 

in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 3. Authorization. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager 

to execute the Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and 

any subsequent amendments or related documents necessary to implement the 

Agreement, subject to the approval of the City Attorney as to form, content, and legal 

sufficiency. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately 

upon adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



MEMORANDUM
Agenda Item No. 8(G)(1) 

TO: Honorable Chairman Oliver G. Gilbert, III  DATE: July 18, 2023 
and Members, Board of County Commissioners 

FROM: Geri Bonzon-Keenan SUBJECT: Resolution approving amended 
County Attorney and restated interlocal agreement 

with various municipalities to 
reestablish distribution of 
proceeds of the six-cent local 
option gas tax for the 30-year 
period from January 1, 2024 
through December 31, 2053; 
authorizing County Mayor to 
execute the agreement and to 
exercise all provisions contained 
therein 

The accompanying resolution was prepared by the Office of Management and Budget and placed 
on the agenda at the request of Prime Sponsor Vice Chairman Anthony Rodríguez. 

_______________________________ 
Geri Bonzon-Keenan        
County Attorney 

GBK/gh 

MDC001



Executive Summary 
Pursuant to Section 336.025, Florida Statues, local counties are permitted to impose up to a six-cent 
local option gas tax (per gallon) of motor and diesel fuels sold in each such county and that are 
distributed to the local county and municipalities. The proceeds generated from this can be used 
towards transportation purposes, that include funding activities for the Department of Transportation 
and Public Works (DTPW) as well as municipal transportation functions. This item approves the 
amended and restated interlocal agreement between the County and municipalities that reestablishes 
the disbursement formula of the six-cent local option gas tax currently being used to distribute local 
option fuel tax proceeds between the County and eligible municipalities for the 30-year period including 
January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053.   

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Miami-Dade County (County) Board of County Commissioners (Board) 
approve the resolution which includes the amended and restated interlocal agreements that reestablish 
the distribution methodology for the six-cent local option gas tax among the County and municipalities 
currently being used to distribute local option fuel tax proceeds between the County and eligible 
municipalities for the 30-year period including January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053.  

Scope of Agenda Item 
The impact of this item is countywide as the six-cent local option gas tax eligible uses include funding 
public transportation operations and public works functions. Additionally, this item will allow 
municipalities to fund public transportation operations and public works functions.  

Fiscal Impact / Funding Source 
The annual fiscal impact associated with a six-cent levy is projected to be $63.764 million in FY 2023-
24 with the County receiving $44.890 million and the municipalities receiving $18.874 million. The 
relevied local option gas tax will be imposed January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2053.  The 
January 1st relevy of the six-cent local option gas tax will create a four month lapse in collections. This 
lapse is being accounted for in the FY 2023-24 Proposed Budget so that no budget gaps exist for the 
County and municipalities. 

Delegation of Authority  
This item authorizes the Mayor or Mayor’s designee to execute the amended and restated interlocal 
agreement with the municipalities and to exercise all provisions contained therein. 

Track Record / Monitor 
The Miami-Dade Office of Management and Budget (OMB) will administer and oversee the interlocal 
agreements. 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

  and Members, Board of County Commissioners 

Daniella Levine Cava 
Mayor 

Resolution Approving Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for the 
Reestablishment and Distribution of the Six-Cent Local Option Gas Tax  

July 18, 2023

Honorable Chairman Oliver G. Gilbert, III 

MDC002



Honorable Chairman Oliver G. Gilbert, III 
  and Members, Board of County Commissioners 
Page 2 

Background 
State law permits counties to impose up to a six-cent local option gas tax on motor fuel and special 
fuels.  Miami-Dade County imposed a four-cent local option gas tax on September 1, 1983, and an 
additional two cents were imposed in 1985 bringing the total tax collected to six cents. The current 
local option gas tax (Ordinance 93-53) will expire on August 31st, 2023. Miami-Dade County and the 
municipalities within the County share approximately $63.764 million generated by the six-cent local 
option gas tax. The county and cities rely on this revenue to support their respective roadway/public 
transportation expenditures.  Permissible uses of the tax are: 

a. Public transportation operations and maintenance
b. Roadway and right-of-way maintenance and equipment and structures used primarily for the

storage and maintenance of such equipment
c. Roadway and right-of-way drainage
d. Street lighting
e. Traffic signs, traffic engineering, signalization and pavement markings
f. Bridge maintenance and operations
g. Debt service and current expenditures for transportation capital projects in the above

program areas, including construction or reconstruction of roads

The proceeds from the existing tax are distributed based on a formula in an interlocal agreement 
originally established by the parties in substantially the form provided in Resolution No. R-903-98, 
which currently allocates 70.4 percent of the net proceeds to Miami-Dade and 29.6 percent to all 
eligible incorporated cities. The municipal share is distributed among cities based on a weighing of 
population (75 percent) and centerline miles of roadway maintained (25 percent) for each city as 
compared to the total population and centerline mile figures for the entire incorporated area. The 
County agrees to use its best efforts to spend two-thirds of its share within the incorporated area of 
the County. The current County share is approximately $44.890 million programmed for FY 2023-24. 
To meet statutory requirements, a majority of the incorporated area population of Miami-Dade County 
must enter into the agreements.  

__________________________ 
Edward Marquez 
Chief Financial Officer 

MDC003



L
o

ca
l O

p
ti

o
n

 G
as

 T
ax

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 -
 S

ix
 C

en
ts

F
Y

 2
02

3-
24

 E
st

im
at

ed
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 @

 9
5

 P
er

ce
n

t

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

P
e

rc
e

n
t

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 a
t 

75
%

C
en

te
rl

in
e 

M
ile

a
g

e
M

ile
a

g
e 

P
e

rc
e

n
t

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 a
t 

25
%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 s
h

ar
e 

o
f 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 
P

ro
ce

ed
s

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
S

h
a

re
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
ce

ed
s

G
a

s 
T

a
x 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

A
V

E
N

T
U

R
A

40
,3
5
0

2
.5
9
39

5
1.
94

54
6

13
.8

0
.4
4
24

9
0.
11

06
2

0
.0
2
05

6
0
.0
0
60

9
38

8,
07

3

B
A

L
 H

A
R

B
O

U
R

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

3,
09

4
0
.1
9
89

0
0.
14

91
8

0
.0

0.
00

00
0

0
.0
0
00

0
0.
00

14
9

0.
00

04
4

28
,1

6
0

B
A

Y
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 IS

L
A

N
D

S
5,
96

1
0
.3
8
32

1
0.
28

74
1

9
.0

0.
28

85
8

0
.0
7
21

4
0.
00

36
0

0.
00

10
6

67
,8

7
2

B
IS

C
A

Y
N

E
 P

A
R

K
3,
11

2
0
.2
0
00

6
0.
15

00
4

17
.0

0
.5
4
50

9
0.
13

6
27

0
.0
0
28

6
0.
0
00

85
54

,0
3

7

C
O

R
A

L
 G

A
B

L
E

S
52

,0
1
4

3
.3
4
37

8
2.
50

78
4

24
2.
3

7.
7
69

14
1.
9
42

29
0.
04

45
0

0
.0
1
31

7
83

9,
92

1

C
U

T
L

E
R

 B
A

Y
45

,5
4
5

2
.9
2
79

2
2.
19

59
4

89
.5

2
.8
6
97

4
0.
71

74
4

0
.0
2
91

3
0
.0
0
86

2
54

9,
88

1

D
O

R
A

L
81

,1
8
2

5
.2
1
88

8
3.
91

41
6

70
.2

2
.2
4
93

0
0.
56

23
3

0
.0
4
47

7
0
.0
1
32

5
84

4,
90

4

E
L

 P
O

R
T

A
L

1,
99

3
0
.1
2
81

2
0.
09

60
9

12
.5

0
.4
0
08

0
0.
10

0
20

0
.0
0
19

6
0.
0
00

58
37

,0
5

0

F
L

O
R

ID
A

 C
IT

Y
14

,3
2
0

0
.9
2
05

8
0.
69

04
3

39
.4

1
.2
6
21

7
0.
31

55
4

0
.0
1
00

6
0
.0
0
29

8
18

9,
87

4

G
O

L
D

E
N

 B
E

A
C

H
95

5
0.
0
61

39
0.
0
46

05
11

.4
0.
36

55
3

0
.0
9
13

8
0.
00

13
7

0.
00

04
1

25
,9

3
3

H
IA

L
E

A
H

22
8,
20

6
14

.6
70

50
11

.0
0
28

7
35

6.
7

11
.4
38

24
2
.8
5
95

6
0.
1
38

62
0.
04

10
3

2,
61

6,
4

18

H
IA

L
E

A
H

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
23

,0
7
6

1
.4
8
34

7
1.
11

26
0

39
.0

1
.2
5
05

0
0.
31

26
3

0
.0
1
42

5
0
.0
0
42

2
26

8,
99

5

H
O

M
E

S
T

E
A

D
83

,0
1
2

5
.3
3
65

3
4.
00

23
9

16
0.
0

5.
1
30

58
1.
2
82

65
0.
05

28
5

0
.0
1
56

4
99

7,
50

2

IN
D

IA
N

 C
R

E
E

K
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
89

0.
00

57
2

0.
00

42
9

2.
2

0.
07

0
54

0
.0
1
76

4
0.
00

02
2

0.
00

00
6

4,
13

3

M
E

D
L

E
Y

1,
05

6
0
.0
6
78

9
0.
05

09
2

35
.6

1
.1
4
14

8
0.
28

5
37

0
.0
0
33

6
0.
0
01

00
63

,4
7

4

M
IA

M
I

45
9,
22

4
29

.5
21

76
22

.1
4
13

2
66

2.
3

21
.2
37

52
5
.3
0
93

7
0.
2
74

51
0.
08

12
5

5,
18

1,
1

01

M
IA

M
I B

E
A

C
H

83
,6
1
8

5
.3
7
54

8
4.
03

16
1

12
5.
2

4.
0
14

75
1.
0
03

69
0.
05

03
5

0
.0
1
49

0
95

0,
37

3

M
IA

M
I G

A
R

D
E

N
S

11
5,
05

3
7
.3
9
63

2
5.
54

72
4

36
9.
2

11
.8
3
93

6
2
.9
5
98

4
0.
08

50
7

0.
02

51
8

1,
60

5,
6

47

M
IA

M
I L

A
K

E
S

30
,9
0
5

1
.9
8
67

7
1.
49

00
7

71
.1

2
.2
8
10

4
0.
57

02
6

0
.0
2
06

0
0
.0
0
61

0
38

8,
86

5

M
IA

M
I S

H
O

R
E

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
11

,6
3
0

0
.7
4
76

5
0.
56

07
4

57
.9

1
.8
5
65

1
0.
46

41
3

0
.0
1
02

5
0
.0
0
30

3
19

3,
44

2

M
IA

M
I S

P
R

IN
G

S
13

,8
6
5

0
.8
9
13

3
0.
66

85
0

89
.0

2
.8
5
37

1
0.
71

34
3

0
.0
1
38

2
0
.0
0
40

9
26

0,
82

3

N
O

R
T

H
 B

A
Y

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

8,
20

6
0
.5
2
75

3
0.
39

56
5

6
.2

0.
19

88
0

0
.0
4
97

0
0.
00

44
5

0.
00

13
2

84
,0

4
7

N
O

R
T

H
 M

IA
M

I
60

,3
3
7

3
.8
7
88

4
2.
90

91
3

10
8.
7

3.
4
85

69
0.
8
71

42
0.
03

78
1

0
.0
1
11

9
71

3,
55

8

N
O

R
T

H
 M

IA
M

I B
E

A
C

H
43

,5
9
1

2
.8
0
23

0
2.
10

17
2

12
0.
0

3.
8
47

38
0.
9
61

84
0.
03

06
4

0
.0
0
90

7
57

8,
23

0

O
P

A
-L

O
C

K
A

16
,7
1
0

1
.0
7
42

2
0.
80

56
7

37
.0

1
.1
8
63

7
0.
29

65
9

0
.0
1
10

2
0
.0
0
32

6
20

8,
05

0

P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

18
,3
9
4

1
.1
8
24

8
0.
88

68
6

10
8.
0

3.
4
62

93
0.
8
65

73
0.
01

75
3

0
.0
0
51

9
33

0,
78

9

S
O

U
T

H
 M

IA
M

I
12

,0
9
0

0
.7
7
72

2
0.
58

29
2

45
.6

1
.4
6
21

3
0.
36

55
3

0
.0
0
94

8
0
.0
0
28

1
17

9,
00

3

S
U

N
N

Y
 IS

L
E

S
 B

E
A

C
H

22
,7
5
6

1
.4
6
29

0
1.
09

71
7

7
.9

0.
25

33
1

0
.0
6
33

3
0.
01

16
1

0.
00

34
4

21
9,

03
5

S
U

R
F

S
ID

E
5,
44

6
0
.3
5
01

0
0.
26

25
8

12
.0

0
.3
8
47

7
0.
09

6
19

0
.0
0
35

9
0.
0
01

06
67

,7
2

1

S
W

E
E

T
W

A
T

E
R

20
,2
4
0

1
.3
0
11

5
0.
97

58
7

35
.3

1
.1
3
12

2
0.
28

28
1

0
.0
1
25

9
0
.0
0
37

3
23

7,
57

0

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 K
E

Y
 B

IS
C

A
Y

N
E

14
,7
8
4

0
.9
5
04

1
0.
71

28
1

20
.5

0
.6
5
73

2
0.
16

43
3

0
.0
0
87

7
0
.0
0
26

0
16

5,
54

6

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
A

L
M

E
T

T
O

 B
A

Y
25

,0
4
1

1
.6
0
97

9
1.
20

73
4

12
5.
3

4.
0
17

00
1.
0
04

25
0.
02

21
2

0
.0
0
65

5
41

7,
42

2

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

2,
37

6
0
.1
5
27

4
0.
11

45
6

6
.4

0.
20

52
1

0
.0
5
13

0
0.
00

16
6

0.
00

04
9

31
,3

1
2

W
E

S
T

 M
IA

M
I

7,
31

3
0
.4
7
01

3
0.
35

25
9

12
.5

0
.4
0
08

0
0.
10

0
20

0
.0
0
45

3
0.
0
01

34
85

,4
6

2

T
O

T
A

L
 -

 C
it

ie
s

1,
5

55
,5

4
4

1
00

.0
0

00
0

75
.0

0
00

0
3

,1
1

8.
7

10
0.

00
00

0
25

.0
0

00
0

1.
00

00
0

0.
29

60
0

18
,8

7
4,

22
3

T
o

ta
l C

it
ie

s
29

.6
0
0

18
,8

7
4,

2
05

T
o

ta
l C

o
u

n
ty

70
.4
0
0

44
,8

9
0,

0
00

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

10
0.
00

0
63

,7
6

4,
2

05

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
:

B
u

re
au

 o
f 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 a

n
d

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
es

ea
rc

h
, U

n
iv

er
s

it
y 

o
f 

F
lo

ri
d

a 
(2

02
2 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 e
s

ti
m

at
e 

re
p

o
rt

) 
h

tt
p

s:
//w

w
w

.b
eb

r.
u

fl
.e

d
u

/w
p

-c
o

n
te

n
t/

u
p

lo
ad

s/
2

02
2/

12
/e

s
ti

m
at

es
_2

02
2.

p
d

f

M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e
 L

o
c

al
 O

p
ti

o
n

 (
5 

ce
n

ts
) 

G
as

 T
ax

 E
s

ti
m

at
e 

(a
t 

95
%

) 
fo

r 
F

is
ca

l Y
e

ar
 2

0
23

-2
4,

 e
x

cl
u

d
in

g
 a

n
y 

se
rv

ic
e

 c
h

ar
g

e
 w

it
h

h
el

d
 b

y 
th

e
 S

ta
te

 o
f 

F
lo

ri
d

a

T
O

T
A

L
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

"2
0

21
 C

it
y/

C
o

u
n

ty
 M

ile
a

g
e 

R
ep

o
rt

" 
- 

F
lo

ri
d

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
o

f 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 (
h

tt
p

s:
//f

tp
.f

d
o

t.
g

o
v/

p
u

b
lic

/f
o

ld
e

r/
n

N
fI

A
vm

a1
06

m
sh

fA
a

b
O

m
yQ

/C
it

y_
a

n
d

_
C

o
u

n
ty

_R
o

ad
s)A

T
T

A
C

H
M

E
N

T
 A

MDC004



Honorable Chairman Oliver G. Gilbert, III
and Members, Board of County Commissioners

County Attorney

July 18, 2023

8(G)(1)

MDC005



Approved       Mayor Agenda Item No. 8(G)(1)
7-18-23 Veto __________ 

Override __________ 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________________ 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDED AND RESTATED 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH VARIOUS 
MUNICIPALITIES TO REESTABLISH DISTRIBUTION OF 
PROCEEDS OF THE SIX-CENT LOCAL OPTION GAS TAX 
FOR THE 30-YEAR PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2053; AUTHORIZING COUNTY 
MAYOR OR COUNTY MAYOR’S DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT AND TO EXERCISE ALL PROVISIONS 
CONTAINED THEREIN 

WHEREAS, Section 336.025, Florida Statutes, authorizes county governments to levy 

various local option fuel taxes upon every gallon of motor fuel and diesel fuel sold in the county 

and taxed under the provisions of Part I or Part II of Chapter 206 of the Florida Statutes pursuant 

to an ordinance enacted by the Board of County Commissioners; and 

WHEREAS, in 1993, the Board of County Commissioners of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida ("Board"), levied a six-cent ($0.06) local option gas tax on every gallon of motor fuel and 

diesel fuel sold in Miami-Dade County (“1993 Local Option Gas Tax”); and 

WHEREAS, in 1997, this Board extended the imposition of the 1993 Local Option Gas 

Tax that began on September 1, 1993, for a maximum period of 30 years through Ordinance No. 

97-156; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. R-903-98, Miami-Dade County and eligible 

municipalities entered into an interlocal agreement in accordance with Section 336.025(3)(a)(1), 

Florida Statutes, establishing the method of distributing the proceeds of the six-cent ($0.06) local 

option gas tax within Miami-Dade County for the remainder of the 1993 Local Option Gas Tax’s 

term; and 

MDC006



Agenda Item No. 8(G)(1) 
Page No. 2 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the 1993 Local Option Gas Tax have been distributed in 

accordance with the terms of that interlocal agreement; and 

WHEREAS, by ordinance, Miami-Dade County desires to relevy the six-cent local option 

fuel tax authorized by Section 336.025(1)(a), Florida Statutes for the 30-year period including 

January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053; and 

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County and various municipalities representing a majority of  

the population of the incorporated areas of Miami-Dade County desire to amend and restate their 

current interlocal agreement in order to reestablish the distribution formula currently being used 

to distribute local option fuel tax proceeds between the County and eligible municipalities for the 

30-year period including January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA, that this Board: 

Section 1. Approves the Interlocal Agreement between Miami-Dade County and various 

municipalities representing a majority of the population of the incorporated areas of Miami-Dade 

County reestablishing the distribution formula currently being used to distribute local option fuel 

tax proceeds between the County and eligible municipalities for the 30-year period including 

January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053, in substantially the form attached hereto and made a 

part hereof.  

Section 2. Authorizes the County Mayor or the County Mayor’s designee to execute the 

Agreement, for and on behalf of Miami-Dade County after proper execution by all municipalities 

that are parties thereto and to exercise all provisions contained therein. 

MDC007



Agenda Item No. 8(G)(1) 
Page No. 3 

The foregoing resolution was offered by Commissioner , 

who moved its adoption.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner         

and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:  

Oliver G. Gilbert, III, Chairman 
Anthony Rodríguez, Vice Chairman 

Marleine Bastien Juan Carlos Bermudez 
Kevin Marino Cabrera Sen. René García 
Roberto J. Gonzalez Keon Hardemon 
Danielle Cohen Higgins Eileen Higgins 
Kionne L. McGhee Raquel A. Regalado 
Micky Steinberg 

The Chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 18th day 

of July, 2023.  This resolution shall become effective upon the earlier of (1) 10 days after the 

date of its adoption unless vetoed by the County Mayor, and if vetoed, shall become effective only 

upon an override by this Board, or (2) approval by the County Mayor of this resolution and 

the filing of this approval with the Clerk of the Board. 

Approved by County Attorney as 
to form and legal sufficiency.  _______ 

Gerald K. Sanchez

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
   BY ITS BOARD OF 
   COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

   JUAN FERNANDEZ-BARQUIN, CLERK 

   By:________________________ 
         Deputy Clerk 

MDC008



1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of __ 2023, 

by and between Miami-Dade County, Florida, a political subdivision of the State of Florida and 

municipalities representing a majority of the population of the incorporated area of Miami-Dade 

County. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Section 336.025, Florida Statutes, authorizes county governments to levy 

various local option fuel taxes upon every gallon of motor fuel and diesel fuel sold in the county 

and taxed under the provisions of Part I or Part II of Chapter 206 of the Florida Statutes pursuant 

to an ordinance enacted by the Board of County Commissioners; and 

WHEREAS, in 1993, the Board of County Commissioners of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida (“Board”), levied a six-cent ($0.06) local option gas tax on every gallon of motor fuel and 

diesel fuel sold in Miami-Dade County (“1993 Local Option Gas Tax”); and 

WHEREAS, in 1997, this Board extended the imposition of the 1993 Local Option Gas 

Tax that began on September 1, 1993, for a maximum period of 30 years through Ordinance No. 

97-156; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. R-903-98, Miami-Dade County and eligible 

municipalities entered into an interlocal agreement in accordance with Section 336.025(3)(a)(1), 

Florida Statutes, establishing the method of distributing the proceeds of the six-cent ($0.06) local 

option gas tax within Miami-Dade County for the remainder of the 1993 Local Option Gas Tax’s 

term; and 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the 1993 Local Option Gas Tax have been distributed in 

accordance with the terms of that interlocal agreement; and 

MDC009



2 

WHEREAS, by ordinance, Miami-Dade County desires to relevy the six-cent local option 

fuel tax authorized by Section 336.025(1)(a), Florida Statutes, for the 30-year period including 

January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053; and 

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County and various municipalities representing a majority of 

the population of the incorporated areas of Miami-Dade County desire to amend and restate their 

current interlocal agreement in order to reestablish the distribution formula currently being used 

to distribute local option fuel tax proceeds between the County and eligible municipalities for the 

30-year period including January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2053, 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants contained herein, the receipt and 

adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged by all parties hereto, it is agreed as follows: 

1. This amended and restated agreement shall become effective upon its approval by 

the governing bodies of the County and of municipalities representing a majority of the population 

of the incorporated area of Miami-Dade. 

2. The distribution formula described in the original interlocal agreement provided in 

County Resolution No. R-903-98 has governed local option gas tax distributions for FY 1999-

2000 and each subsequent fiscal year for the entire term of the "1993 Local Option Gas Tax", as 

defined in Article IX, Chapter 29 of the Code of Miami Dade County, Florida, as amended. 

3. The parties desire to have that same distribution formula govern gas tax 

distributions for any local option gas taxes relevied by Miami-Dade County pursuant to Section 

336.025(1)(a), Florida Statutes, for the 30-year period including January 1, 2024 through 

December 31, 2053. 

4. Currently, Miami-Dade County has imposed and levied a local option gas tax of up 

to six cents, the net proceeds thereof had been previously allocated on the basis of 70.4 percent 

MDC010



3 

(the “County portion”) to the County and 29.6 percent (the “municipal portion”) to all eligible 

incorporated municipalities in Miami-Dade County, Florida pursuant to Section 336.025(6), 

Florida Statutes. Net proceeds shall mean local option gas taxes collected by the Florida 

Department of Revenue (“DOR”) less the amount retained by the DOR for administration as 

provided under Florida law. 

5. The municipal portion of the local option gas taxes shall be distributed among the 

eligible incorporated municipalities in Miami-Dade County, Florida, based on a formula as 

follows: 

a. Seventy-five percent based upon the ratio of the population of each eligible 

incorporated municipality compared to the total population of all eligible 

incorporated municipalities in Miami-Dade County; and 

b. Twenty-five percent based upon the ratio of total centerline miles of roadway 

maintained by each eligible incorporated municipality compared to the total 

centerline miles maintained by all eligible incorporated municipalities in Miami-

Dade County. 

6. In the event that an eligible municipality annexes an area of unincorporated Miami-

Dade County or a newly incorporated municipality becomes eligible for participation in the 

distribution of local option gas tax proceeds, the distribution shall be set in accordance with the 

formula in Sections 5(a) and 5(b), in which case the County's Unincorporated Municipal Service 

Area (“UMSA”) share will be reduced by the proportionate reduction in population and roadway 

centerline miles, and provided to the municipal portion with the County and municipal shares 

adjusted accordingly. For calculation purposes, the UMSA share of the County's portion shall be 

defined as 20 percent of the original 74 percent County share of the 1993 Local Option Gas Tax, 

MDC011



4 

as described in Section 29-79 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida. The County's portion 

of the local option gas tax shall never be less than 80 percent of the original 74 percent share (59 

percent of the total net proceeds distributed by the state). 

7. Population figures used shall be the figures used to determine the annual 

distribution of the half cent local government sales tax pursuant to Section 218.60(1)(a), Florida 

Statutes. Centerline mile figures shall be based upon yearly figures submitted by each municipality 

to the Department of Financial Services in their Annual Financial Report and recorded by the 

Florida Department of Transportation as required by Section 218.32, Florida Statutes. The 

population and centerline mile figures shall be updated annually with data current as of June 1 of 

each year. 

8. Miami-Dade County will use its best efforts to spend two thirds of the County 

portion on transportation expenses within the incorporated municipalities. 

9. The percentages for distribution shall be calculated by the County annually. By July 

1 of each year, the County shall notify all municipalities and the appropriate state agencies of the 

percentages for distribution of LOGT proceeds among the municipalities for the upcoming annual 

period commencing January 1. The percentage for distribution of local option gas tax proceeds to 

any city whose current population or centerline mile figures are not available shall be determined 

by the County based on the most recent available population and/or centerline mile figures reported 

to the state. In the event that either the population figures and/or the centerline miles are proven to 

be incorrect for any given municipality in any given year, the correction to the percentage 

distribution will be made in the subsequent year gas tax distribution calculation. 

10. Pursuant to Section 336.025(5)(b), Florida Statutes, disputes regarding the 

percentage of distribution to any municipality hereunder shall be resolved through an appeal to the 

MDC012



5 

Administration Commission in accordance with procedures developed by the Commission. 

Pending final disposition of such proceedings, the tax shall be collected and such funds shall be 

held in escrow by the Clerk of the Circuit Court of the County until final disposition is made. 

11. The net proceeds of local option gas taxes shall only be used for “transportation 

expenditures,” as defined by Section 336.025(7), Florida Statutes. 

12. In the event that a significant shift of responsibility for regional transportation 

services occurs between the County and the municipalities, this interlocal agreement may be 

renegotiated by the mutual consent of the County and the municipalities representing a majority 

of the population of the incorporated area of Miami-Dade County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amended and Restated Interlocal 

Agreement to be executed by their respective and duly authorized officers as of the date written 

above.  

ATTEST:        
 
JUAN FERNANDEZ-BARQUIN,  
CLERK 
 
     
By:__________________________________ 
       DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
        
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 

 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 

Name: 
Title: 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
        
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:__________________________________   

MDC013



           

Meeting Date: August 14, 2023  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

From:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 

    

Subject: CGA Planning- Special Projects 
 
 

Attached is a list of Special Projects listed by Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. (CGA), the City’s 

Planning Consultants, for Council’s consideration.   

 

They are broken down, where appropriate, into core components and options, but each project is in itself 

an option within a menu. Of course, each cost estimate is based on CGA’s understanding of a project’s 

individual scope, as described in the table.  

 

These items are before Council this evening for consideration for budgeting in the Fiscal Year 2023-

2024.  

  



 

 
 

Revised: 01/23/2017 

Memorandum 

☐ Fort Lauderdale Office · 1800 Eller Drive · Suite 600 · Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316 · 954.921.7781(p) · 954.921.8807(f) 
☒ Miami-Dade Office · 2103 Coral Way · Suite 810 · Miami, FL 33145 · 786.485.5200(p) · 786.485.1520(f) 
 
 

Date:   July 14, 2023, 2021 
 
To:  Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 
 
From:  Silvia Vargas, FAICP, LEED AP and Alex David, AICP 
   
Subject: Cost Estimate of Potential Special Projects for FY 23-24 
 
Project:  Miami Springs Planning and Zoning  
 
CC:   

 
 
The following is a preliminary estimate of cost for the projects that have been discussed with us. It may not 
reflect other needs that are unknown at this time. These estimates are based on information shared to date 
regarding the nature of the projects; however, each scope may be further detailed once a process is 
undertaken and more is known about the key issues and priorities, data availability, and community 
engagement needs, among other factors. For this reason, recommended approach to budgeting, based on 
experience in other communities, would be to allocate an overall not-to-exceed amount, with subsequent 
individual authorizations issued for each project.  For your convenience, in certain cases we have also 
separated core scope components from recommended but optional services. Please do not hesitate to let us 
know if you have any questions or concerns.  

 
Project General Scope Proposed Upset 

Limit 
Comments/Notes 

NW 36th Street Corridor 
Vision and 
Implementation 
Strategy 

Core components: 
• Research & analysis 
• Code (text) but potentially also 

Comprehensive Plan 
amendments and 
corresponding map clean ups 
(if necessary) 

• Council workshop(s) (2 max) 
• Community engagement (2 

max)  
• Required public review 

meetings (ZPB (1), City Council 
(2)) 

• Transmittal to reviewing 
agencies (if necessary) 

$29,240 Ordinance 

 Optional services:   
$16,000 

• A market-based grounding 
is strongly recommended 



• Economic/Market Analysis 
(subconsultant to CGA) 

 
 
• Visualizations (up to 3) 

 
 
 
 

$8,000 

to help ensure that the 
regulatory 
recommendations produce 
the desired results 

• To easily convey complex 
concepts 

Gateway Overlay 
Amendment 

• Code (text) amendment 
• Council workshop (1 max) 
• Required public review 

meetings (ZPB (1), City 
Council (2)) 

$10,320 • Ordinance 
• No Zoning Map 

amendment anticipated 

Zoning Code Clean Up 
and Update 

Core components: 
• Code (text) amendment  
• Review/Diagnosis 
• Annotated outline 
• Reorganization / Flow 
• Internal consistency check 
• Processes and procedures  
• Removal of obsolescent 

regulations / Language Check 
• Modernization / Introduction 

of best/state-of-the-art 
practices 

• Key user engagement (2 max) 
• Required public review 

meetings (ZPB (1), City 
Council (2)  

$46,440 Ordinance 

 Optional services: 
• Conversion of dimensional 

district requirements to 
Summary Tables and 
production of visuals 
(graphics) to augment user 
friendliness and accessibility 

 
$10,000 

Recommended  

Mapping (GIS) • Creation of new map base files 
and Future Land Use and Zoning 
map layers 

$10,000 Subject to availability or 
absence of data 

Comprehensive Plan 
EAR-based 
amendments (2023-
2024 cycle) 

• Analysis of recent legislation for 
impact on Comp Plan 

• Amendments if necessary to 
comply with new statutory 
requirements since the last 
update (Nov 22) 

• Required public review 
meetings (ZPB (1), City Council 
(2) 

• Transmittal to reviewing 
agencies 

$12,900 Letter of notification 
included in current (FY23) 
budget 
 
 

 


	Agenda Summary - August 14, 2023
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3
	6A Minutes - May 15, 2023 WKSP
	6B Minutes - June 29, 2023 Regular
	6C Minutes - July 20, 2023 Special
	9A LSP Funding Agreement
	9B Garbage Truck Purchase
	9C Police Vehicle Purchase
	11A City Manager Agreement
	11B Solid Waste Fee Public Hearing Date Setting
	11C CGA Amendment
	11D Gas Tax Agreement
	12B CGA Proposal for Special Projects



